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Uttam Galva Steels Limited

NOTICE
NOTICE is hereby given that the 29th ANNUAL GENERAL 
MEETING of the Members of the Company will be held at 

11.00 a.m. on Saturday, 23rd August, 2014 at M. C. Ghia Hall, 

18/20, K. Dubhash Marg, Mumbai- 400 001 to transact the 

following business :

ORDINARY BUSINESS:
1. To consider and adopt the Statement of Pro�it & Loss 

Account for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2014 

and the Balance Sheet as at that date and Reports of 

the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Shri S G Tudekar 

(DIN 00138678), who retires by rotation and being 

eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

3. To re-appoint M/s. Prakkash Muni & Associates, 

Chartered Accountants, (Registration No. 111792W) 

as the Statutory Auditor of the Company for one year, 

to hold of�ice from the conclusion of this Annual 

General Meeting till the conclusion of the 30th Annual 

General Meeting and to authorize the Board of 

Directors to decide their remuneration. 

SPECIAL BUSINESS:
4. To consider, and if thought �it, to pass with or 

without modi�ication, the following resolution, as an 
Ordinary Resolution:

 “RESOLVED THAT subject to the provisions of 

Sections 196, 197, 203 read with Schedule V and 

any other applicable provisions of the Companies 

Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Appointment 

and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 

2014 (including any statutory modi�ication(s) or 

re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) and 

applicable provisions of the Articles of Association 

of the Company, approval of the Company be and 

is hereby accorded for the re- appointment of 

Shri Ankit Miglani (DIN 00444956) as a Dy. Managing 

Director of the Company for the period of three years  

effective from 29th July, 2014 to 28th July, 2017 on the 

following terms and conditions:-

a) Remuneration 

(i) `10,00,000/- per month by way of salary 

and other allowances.

b) Perquisites

 In addition to the above, he shall be entitled to 

the following perquisites:

 PART A

a. Leave Travel Assistance : Payable as per the 

rules of the Company.

b. Medical Reimbursement : Payable as per the 

rules of the Company.

c. Club Fee : Fees of clubs, subject to a maximum of 

two clubs.

PART B

a. Provident Fund and Superannuation Fund : As 

per the rules of the Company.

b. Gratuity : As per the rules of the Company but 

not exceeding half a month’s salary for each 

completed year of service.

c. Leave and Encashment : As per rules of the 

Company.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Shri Ankit Miglani be 

permitted use of the Company’s car with driver for 

of�icial purposes as per the policy of the Company, as 

may be amended from time to time.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Shri Ankit Miglani shall 

not be entitled to any sitting fees or other payments 

for attending the meetings of the Board, or where 

applicable, any committee thereof.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Company shall pay 

to or reimburse to the Dy. Managing Director all costs, 

charges and expenses that may have been or may be 

incurred by him for the purpose of or on behalf of the 

Company.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the event of the 

loss or inadequacy of pro�it in any �inancial year 

during his tenure as the Dy. Managing Director, the 

aforesaid remuneration will be treated as minimum 

Remuneration subject to approval of Central 

Government, if any, as may be required. 

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors 

of the Company be and are hereby authorised to 

vary, alter or modify the different components of 

the above-stated remuneration in accordance with 

provision of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 

as may be agreed to by the Board of Directors and 

Shri Ankit Miglani.”

5. To consider and if thought �it, to pass with or without 

modi�ication(s), the following resolution, as an 
Ordinary Resolution:
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read with Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013 

and Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, Shri S T 

Parikh (DIN 00941756), Director of the Company 

whose period of of�ice is liable to determination by 

retirement of Directors by rotation and in respect of 

whom the Company has received a notice in writing 

from a member proposing his candidature for the 

of�ice of Director, be and is hereby appointed as an 

Independent Director of the Company to hold of�ice 

for �ive consecutive years for a term upto 31st March, 

2019.”

8. To consider and if thought �it, to pass with or without 

modi�ication(s), the following resolution as an 
Ordinary Resolution:

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of 

Sections 149, 152 and any other applicable provisions 

of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made 

thereunder (including any statutory modi�ication(s) 

or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) 

read with Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013 

and Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, Shri O P 

Gahrotra (DIN 00936696), Director of the Company 

whose period of of�ice is liable to determination by 

retirement of Directors by rotation and in respect of 

whom the Company has received a notice in writing 

from a member proposing his candidature for the 

of�ice of Director, be and is hereby appointed as an 

Independent Director of the Company to hold of�ice 

for �ive consecutive years for a term upto 31st March, 

2019.”

9. To consider and if thought �it, to pass with or without 

modi�ication(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary 
Resolution:

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of 

Sections 149, 152 and any other applicable provisions 

of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made 

thereunder (including any statutory modi�ication(s) 

or re-enactment thereof for the time being in 

force) read with Schedule IV to the Companies 

Act, 2013 and Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement,

Shri D L Rawal (DIN 00955797), Director of the 

Company whose period of of�ice is liable to 

determination by retirement of Directors by rotation 

and in respect of whom the Company has received 

a notice in writing from a member proposing his 

candidature for the of�ice of Director, be and is 

hereby appointed as an Independent Director of the 

Company to hold of�ice for 5 (Five) consecutive years 

for a term upto 31st March, 2019.”

10. To consider, and if thought �it, to pass with or without 

modi�ication, the following resolution, as Special 
Resolution:

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of 

Section 180(1)(c) and other applicable provisions, if 

any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and in supersession 

of the resolution passed at the 28th Annual General 

Meeting of the Company held on 17th August, 2013, 

the consent of the Company be and is hereby 

accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company 

to borrow any sum(s) of monies, which together 

with the monies already borrowed by the Company 

(apart from the temporary loans obtained from 

the Company’s Bankers in the ordinary course of 

business) may exceed the aggregate of the paid-up 

share capital of the Company and its free reserves 

( i.e. such reserves which are available for distribution 

as dividend) provided the aggregate of the monies 

borrowed and to be borrowed and outstanding at 

any one time shall not exceed ` 10,000 crore (Rupees 

Ten Thousand Crore only).”

11. To consider and if thought �it, to pass, with or without 

modi�ication(s), the following resolution as an 
Ordinary Resolution:

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of 

Section 148 and all other applicable provisions of 

the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit 

and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory 

modi�ication(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the 

time being in force), M/s. Manisha & Associates, 

Cost Accountant, Firm Registration No. 000321 as 

Cost Auditor appointed by the Board of Directors 

of the Company, to conduct the cost audit for Steel 

and Power division of the Company for the �inancial 

year 2014-2015 and be paid the remuneration 

of ` 1,50,000/- (Rupees One Lakhs Fifty Thousand 

only) plus taxes and reimbursement of out-of-pocket 

expenses on actuals. 

By Order of the Board 

For Uttam Galva Steels Limited

R Agrawal
Sr. Vice President & Company Secretary

Registered Of�ice:
Uttam House

69, P. D’Mello Road 

Mumbai-400 009

CIN: L27104MH1985PLC035806 

Date: 30th May, 2014
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INSTRUCTIONS FOR ELECTRONIC VOTING (E-VOTING)
Pursuant to provisions of the Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014, the Company is pleased to offer e-voting facility to cast their votes electronically on 
all resolutions set forth in the notice conveying the 29th Annual General Meeting to be held on 23rd August, 2014 
at M. C. Ghia Hall, 18/20, K. Dubhash Marg, Mumbai- 400 001.

The e-voting facility is available at the link www.evotingindia.com.

The e-voting facility will be available on and from 17th August, 2014 at 9.30 a.m. and ends on 19th August, 2014 
at 6.00 p.m. 

Shri Jigar Kumar Gandhi, Proprietor of JNG & Co., Company Secretaries, Mumbai, has been appointed as the 
scrutinizer to scrutinize the e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner.

Steps for e-voting:

1. Log on to the e-voting website during the voting period.

2. Click on “Shareholders” tab.

3. Now, select the “UTTAM GALVA STEELS LIMITED” from the drop down menu and click on “SUBMIT”

4. Now Enter your User ID 

a) For CDSL: 16 digits bene�iciary ID, 

b) For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID, 

c) Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the Company.

5. Next enter the Image Veri�ication as displayed and Click on Login.

6. If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier 
voting of any Company, then your existing password is to be used. 

7. If you are a �irst time user follow the steps given below:

For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form
PAN* Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department (Applicable for both 

demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders)

• Members who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository Participant are 
requested to use the �irst two letters of their name and the last 8 digits of the Sequence 
number which is mentioned in address Label af�ixed on Annual Report, in the PAN �ield.

• In case the sequence number is less than 8 digits enter the applicable number of 0’s 
before the number after the �irst two characters of the name in CAPITAL letters. Eg. If 
your name is Ramesh Kumar with Sequence number 1 then enter RA00000001 in the 
PAN �ield.

DOB Enter the Date of Birth as recorded in your demat account or in the Company records for the said 
demat account or folio in dd/mm/yyyy format.

Dividend 
Bank Details

Enter the Dividend Bank Details as recorded in your demat account or in the Company records for 
the said demat account or folio.

• Please enter the DOB or Dividend Bank details in order to login. If the details are not 
recorded with the depository or Company please enter the member id/ folio number in 
the Dividend Bank details �ield.
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STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE 
COMPANIES ACT, 2013 (“the Act”)

The following Statement sets out all material facts relating 

to the Special Business mentioned in the accompanying 

Notice: 

Item No. 4

The Board of Directors of the Company, at its meeting held 

on 30th May, 2014 has, subject to the approval of members, 

re-appointed Shri Ankit Miglani (DIN 00444956) as 

Dy. Managing Director, for a period of 3 (Three) years 

from 29th July, 2014, at the remuneration and other Terms 

and Conditions as set out in the Ordinary Resolution at 

Item No. 4

Shri Ankit Miglani, 35 years, is a Graduate in Economics 

with specialization in Finance from Wharton School, 

University of Pennsylvania, Philadelphia, U.S.A. He has 

joined the Board of Uttam Galva Steels Limited on 29th July, 

2005. He is overseeing all the major commercial functions 

such as Marketing and Procurement of Critical Raw 

Materials and is actively involved in formulating strategic 

alliances and undertaking strategic business initiatives. 

Shri Ankit Miglani is the Member of the Corporate Social 

Responsibility Committee and Share transfer Committee 

of the Board.

Shri Ankit Miglani is not disquali�ied from being appointed 

as a Director in terms of Section 164 of the Act. He may 

be deemed to be concerned or interested, �inancially or 

otherwise, to the extent of his shareholding. Shri Rajinder 

Miglani - Chairman and Shri Anuj R Miglani- Managing 

Director being Father and Brother, respectively, of Shri 

Ankit Miglani and their other relatives, to the extent 

of their shareholding interest in the Company, may be 

deemed to be concerned or interested in the appointment 

of Shri Ankit Miglani. 

The above may be treated as a written memorandum 

setting out the terms of re-appointment of Shri Ankit 

Miglani under Section 190 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

The Board accordingly recommends the resolution set 

out in Item No. 4 for the approval of the Members of the 

Company.

Item No. 5 & 6

The Board of Directors of the Company, at its meeting 

held on 30th May, 2014 has appointed Shri Gursharan 

Singh Sawhney (DIN 02339467) as an Additional 

Director. He is also appointed, subject to the approval of 

members, as Whole-time Director designated as Director 

(Finance) & Group CFO with effect from 30th May, 2014 

for a period of 3 (Three) years, at the remuneration and 

other Terms and Conditions as set out in the Ordinary 

Resolution in Item No. 6.

Shri Gursharan Singh Sawhney, 61 years, is a Science 

Graduate, quali�ied Chartered Accountant from the 

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and a quali�ied 

Company Secretary from the Institute of Company 

Secretaries of India. He also has a post graduate diploma 

in business management from XLRI. He has over 36 years 

of experience in �inance and accounts with Companies like 

Batliboi and Company and Ispat Industries. He specializes 

in project �inancing.

The Company has received notice in writing from member 

along with the deposit of requisite amount under Section 

160 of the Act proposing the candidature Shri Gursharan 

Singh Sawhney for the of�ice of Director of the Company.

Shri Gursharan Singh Sawhney is not disquali�ied from 

being appointed as Director in Terms of Section 164 

of the Act and has given his consent to act as Director. 

Shri Gursharan Singh Sawhney is interested in the 

resolutions set out respectively in Item Nos. 5 & 6 of the 

Notice with regard to his appointment. Save and except 

the above, none of the other Directors / Key Managerial 

Personnel of the Company / their relatives are, in any way, 

concerned or interested, in these resolutions.

The above may be treated as a written memorandum 

setting out the terms of re-appointment of Shri Gursharan 

Singh Sawhney under Section 190 of the Companies Act, 

2013. 

The Board commends the Ordinary Resolutions set out in 

Item Nos. 5 & 6 of the Notice for the approval of Members 

of the Company.

Item No. 7 

Shri S T Parikh (DIN 00941756) is a Non-Executive 

Independent Director of the Company. He joined the 

Board of Directors of the Company in September, 1987. 

Shri S T Parikh is the Chairman of the Audit Committee, 

Stakeholder Relationship Committee and Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee.

Shri S T Parikh, 75 years, is a graduate in Civil Engineering. 

He is an eminent professional having over 53 years of varied 

experiences in conceptualization, planning and managing 
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of Shri O P Gahrotra as an Independent Director, for the 

approval of Members of the Company.

Except Shri O P Gahrotra, being an appointee, none of the 

Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company 

and their relatives is concerned or interested, �inancially 

or otherwise, in the resolution set out in Item No.8. This 

Explanatory statement also be regarded as a disclosure 

under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with Stock 

Exchange.

Item No. 9 

Shri D L Rawal (DIN 00955797) is a Non-Executive 

Independent Director of the Company. He joined the 

Board of Directors of the Company in May, 2013. He is the 

Member of the Audit Committee of the Company.

Shri D L Rawal, 63 years, is a Science Graduate (Hons.) and 

Certi�ied Associate of Indian Institute of Banker (CAIIB). 

He has an experience of more than 40 years in Operational 

and Policy formulation in Corporate Banking. After serving 

in Punjab National Bank as General Manager and Canara 

Bank as an Executive Director, he retired as a Chairman 

& Managing Director of Dena Bank. He had also been on 

the Board and Executive Committee of Life Insurance 

Corporation of India, Agriculture Finance Corporation and 

many other such renowned Institutions.

The Company has  received declarations from Shri D L 

Rawal that he meets with the criteria of independence as 
prescribed both under sub-section (6) of Section 149 of 
the Act  and under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement as 

may be in force time to time.

Shri D L Rawal is not disquali�ied from being appointed as 

a Director in terms of Section 164 of the Act and hence he 

is proposed to be appointed as an Independent Director 

for 5 (Five) consecutive years for a term upto 31st March, 

2019. The Company has received notice in writing from 

member along with the deposit of requisite amount 

under Section 160 of the Act proposing the candidature  

Shri D L Rawal for the of�ice of Director of the Company.

In the opinion of the Board, Shri D L Rawal ful�ills the 

conditions speci�ied in the Companies Act, 2013 and rules 

made thereunder for his appointment as an Independent 

Director of the Company and is Independent of the 

Management. Copy of the draft letter for appointment of 

Shri D L Rawal as an Independent Director setting out the 

terms and conditions would be available for inspection 

without any fee by the members at the Registered Of�ice 

of the Company during normal business hours on any 

working day, excluding Saturday.

The Board considers that his continued association would 

be of immense bene�it to the Company and it is desirable 

to continue to avail services of Shri D L Rawal as an 

Independent Director. Accordingly, the Board recommends 

the resolution in relation to appointment of Shri D L Rawal 

as an Independent Director, for the approval of Members 

of the Company.

Except Shri D L Rawal, being an appointee, none of the 

Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company 

and their relatives is concerned or interested, �inancially 

or otherwise, in the resolution set out in Item No.9. This 

Explanatory statement also be regarded as a disclosure 

under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with Stock 

Exchange.

Item No. 10

The Members of the Company at their 28th Annual General 

Meeting held on 17th August, 2013 have approved an 

Ordinary Resolution under Section 293(1)(d) of the 

Companies Act, 1956, for borrowings over and above 

the aggregate of paid-up share capital and free reserves 

of the Company provided that the total amount of such 

borrowings together with the amounts already borrowed 

and outstanding at any point of time shall not be in excess 

of ` 10,000 Crore (Rupees ten thousands crore only).

Section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 effective 

from 12th September, 2013 requires that the Board 

of Directors shall not borrow money in excess of the 

Company’s paid-up share capital and free reserves, apart 

from temporary loans obtained from the Company’s 

bankers in the ordinary course of business, except with 

the consent of the Company accorded by way of a Special 

Resolution.

It is, therefore, necessary for the members to pass a Special 

Resolution under Section 180(1)(c) and other applicable 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, as set out at Item 

No. 10 of the Notice, to enable to the Board of Directors to 

borrow money in excess of the aggregate of the paid-up 

share capital and free reserves of the Company. Approval 

of members is being sought to borrow money upto 

`10,000 Crore (Rupees ten thousands crore only).

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the 

Company and their relatives is concerned or interested, in 

the resolution set out at Item No. 10.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
To,

The Members

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 29th Annual 
Report on the business and operations of the Company, 
along with the Audited Statement of Accounts for the 
Financial Year ended 31st March, 2014.

1. FINANCIAL RESULTS (Stand-alone Basis): 

 (` in Crore)

Particulars
Year ended
31st March, 

2014

Year ended
31st March, 

2013

Gross Revenue from 
Operations 

5754.56 6252.34

Earning before Interest, 
Tax, Depreciation and 
Amortization (EBITDA)

552.90 593.99

Finance Cost 289.09 304.64

Depreciation & 
Amortisation

214.82 182.58

Pro�it Before Tax (PBT) 81.26 135.33

Provision for Tax 45.94 73.78

Pro�it After Tax 
(PAT)  

35.32 61.55

2. OPERATIONS: 

 Amid sluggish macroeconomic situation and weak 
business sentiments, combined by lower GDP growth 
rate of 4.6% and depreciating Indian rupee with 
high volatility, the year 2013-2014 proved to be a 
challenging year. 

 During this year your Company has achieved 
a turnover of ` 5754.56 Crore as against ` 6252.34 
Crore in the previous year. Your Company posted 
Pro�it before Tax of ` 81.26 Crore as against 
` 135.33 Crore in the previous year. Reduction in Gross 
Revenue on account of shrinkage in International 
trading business, higher raw material cost and lower 
demand growth of your Company’s products from 
Auto, Industrial and Construction Segments, led to 
decline in the Pro�it before Tax. 

 Your Company continued its long term strategy to 
invest in modernization and qualitative growth. 
The SAP system which was implemented with effect 
from 1st January, 2013 is now stabilized and process 
owners & users are carrying out all key activities 
through the system. Your Company is also in the 

process of implementing the Global Availability 
to Promise (GATP) module which is an advanced 
feature in the SAP system to improve the delivery 
performance to our customers.

 Your Company has set up a Business Excellence 
Centre to drive operational excellence across all the 
functions which have yielded signi�icant positive 
results. We have engaged M/s. Accenture to initiate 
the Marketing Transformation Program. This 
program will help your Company develop customer 
insight driven value proposition, optimize the sales 
& operations planning and improve our sales force 
productivity for better market visibility and net 
realization.

 Your Company has always emphasized on achieving 
operational excellence and continues to focus on 
customer satisfaction and delight. Backed by strong 
fundamentals and robust plans, your Company is 
fully prepared to face current challenges and bene�it 
from expected medium and long term growth in 
Indian economy. 

 In its pursuit to achieve its long term strategy of 
modernization, your Company has envisaged various 
projects and also looking for the expansion and the 
modernization of current projects, consequently 
in view of the Capex requirement for proposed 
expansion projects of your Company, the Board of 
Directors are of the opinion that Cash �low should 
be conserved and hence decided to plough back the 
entire pro�it earned by your Company and have not 
recommended any dividend.

3. EXPORT:

 Your Company has registered Growth in exports 
volume by 15.2% with growth in sales of 25% in 
North America, 104% in Europe and 58% in Asia. 
Your Company has served 148 countries since its 
entry into the export business and is recognized as 
quality supplier in both developed and emerging 
markets. Your Company has continued to maintain 
its presence in the International Markets inspite of 
the Global slowdown and currency crisis in some of 
the countries.

 The Global Economic situation is showing signi�icant 
signs of revival. As per World Economic Outlook 
Report April, 2014 published by International 

Monetary Fund expected growth across mature 
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b) Opportunities & Threats 
 The per capita Steel consumption in India is still at 

57.8 kgs as against the global average of 225.2 kgs 
for last year as per World Steel Association (WSA) 
publication, indicating huge potential demand in 
India. An expected recovery in Steel demand for the 
Financial Year 2015 and policy reforms from the 
New Government of India (GOI) brings in host of 
opportunities. Also your Company will continue to 
maintain & grow its presence in the Export Markets 
while retaining its focus on value added products in 
Domestic Market. Your Company is ready to cater 
to customers’ stringent speci�ications and demands 
which will ultimately improve the Bottom-line. The 
overall presence in the Conventional, Construction & 
Infrastructure Segments will continue.

 The cost of funding working capital remains high, 
given the lending rates and increased pressure 
on margins coupled with expectation of modest 
improvement in demand poses a challenge for 
the industry. The consistent slowdown in demand 
has resulted in oversupply and thereby leading 
to depressed Steel prices. The secondary Steel 
producers are price takers with prices being decided 
by variations in end user demand, thus limiting the 
ability to pass on the cost increases to end users. Your 
Company has high focus on ef�icient cost control to 
mitigate this external threat of price ceiling by end 
users.

c)  Segment – wise Performance
 Since your Company operates only in one Segment, 

segment-wise or product-wise analysis of performance 
is not applicable.

d) Outlook 
 The domestic �lat Steel consumption in the relevant 

business segments is estimated to grow at 6% to 
8%. The need, however, for value added and niche 
products are likely to surge and have been identi�ied 
as major focus area for your Company.

 Economies like USA and Japan are expected to do well 
which will help in maintaining a balance in supply 
and demand. The commodity segment, however, will 
be under pressure due to overcapacity from Chinese 
mills. 

e) Risks and Concerns
 Your Directors have put in place critical risk 

management framework across the Company for 
identi�ication and evaluation of all the potential 

risks. Your Company is continuously evolving and 
improving systems and measures to take care of 
all the risk exigencies involved in the business. 
All the inherent risks are identi�ied, measured, 
monitored and regularly reported to management. 
The management decides measures required to 
overcome these risks and ensures implementation 
of proper risk mitigation plans. The risk report 
and mitigation plans are presented to the Board of 
Directors periodically. 

f) Internal Control Systems and their adequacy
 Your Company has an effective Internal Control 

System to prevent fraud and misuse of the Company’s 
resources and protect shareholders’ interest. 
Your Company has an independent Internal Audit 
Department to monitor and review and focus on 
the compliances of various business processes. The 
internal audit report alongwith audit �indings and 
tracking of process improvements and compliances 
is presented for review to the Audit Committee of 
Board of Directors. 

 All the certi�icates under ISO: 9001-2008, ISO: 14001- 
2004, ISO/TS 16949:2009 and OHSAS 18001-2007 
for Quality Management, Environment Management, 
Technical speci�ications and Occupational Health 
and Safety Management respectively, are being 
maintained by the Company after periodical 
surveillance audits. 

g) Discussion on Financial Performance with respect 
to Operational Performance

 The �inancial performance with respect to the 
operational performance during the year under 
review was satisfactory inspite of sluggish and 
bearish market conditions. Due to replacement of 
rupee debt with ECB of $ 230 Million, the �inance 
cost has marginally come down but due to higher 
Depreciation / Amortization, the overall pro�itability 
has been affected. The strong focus on credit control, 
inventory management has helped working capital 
and liquidity management thus helping in timely 
generation of internal cash �low to invest in strategic 
objectives of the company. 

h) Material Development in Human Resources /
 Industrial Relations Front, including Number of 

People Employed
 Implementation of healthy HRD practices for overall 

development of human resources and induction 
of professionally quali�ied and skilled manpower 
including internal and external training programmes 
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9. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES U/S 217 (2A) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956:

 The Information required under Section 217(2A) 
of the Companies Act, 1956 and the Rules there 
under, in respect of the employees of the Company, is 
provided in the Annexure  II. 

10. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

 Pursuant to Section 217(2AA) of the Companies Act, 
1956, the Directors con�irm that:

i) In the preparation of the annual accounts, the 
applicable Accounting Standards have been followed 
along with the proper explanation relating to 
material departures.

ii) Appropriate Accounting Policies have been selected 
and applied consistently. Judgments and estimates 
that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true 
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company 
as at 31st March, 2014 and of the Pro�it and Loss 
Account for the Financial Year 2013-2014 have been 
made.

iii) Proper and suf�icient care has been taken for the 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Companies 
Act, 1956, for safeguarding the assets of the 
Company and preventing and detecting fraud and 
other irregularities.

iv) The Annual Accounts have been prepared on a going 
concern basis.

v) Proper systems are in place to ensure compliance of 
all laws applicable to the Company.

11. AUDITORS’ REPORT:

 Notes to the Accounts as referred in the Auditors’ 
Report are self-explanatory and therefore, do not call 
for any further comments or explanations.

12. STATUTORY AUDITOR:

 M/s. Prakkash Muni & Associates, Chartered 
Accountants are the retiring Statutory Auditor of 
the Company, holding of�ice till the conclusion of 
ensuing Annual General Meeting and eligible for 
re-appointment. 

 The Company has received necessary consent letter 
and the Certi�icates from the Auditor pursuant to 
regarding their eligibility under section 139 and 
section 141 of the Companies act, 2013 for their 
appointment. Accordingly, the approval of the 

Shareholders for the appointment of M/s. Prakkash 
Muni & Associates, Chartered Accountants as 
Statutory Auditors of the Company for the term 
of one year is being sought at the ensuing Annual 
General Meeting., as recommended by your Board. 

13. COST AUDITOR:

 Your Board of Directors has appointed M/s. Manisha 
& Associates, Cost Accountants as “Cost Auditors” to 
conduct Cost Audit for Steel and Power Division of 
the Company for the Financial Year 2014  2015.

14. FIXED DEPOSITS:

 Your Company has not accepted Deposits from Public 
under Section 58A of the Companies Act, 1956 and 
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 1975.

15. INSURANCE:

 Your Company has taken adequate insurance cover for 
all its assets. Your Company has also taken the Directors 
and of�icers liability Insurance (D & O Policy) for the 
Directors and of�icers of the Company as indemni�ication 
(reimbursement) for losses or advancement of defense 
costs in the event an insured suffers for any alleged 
wrongful acts in their capacity as directors and of�icers.

16. LISTING OF SECURITIES:

 The Company’s Equity Shares are Listed on the BSE 
Limited (BSE) and the National Stock Exchange 
of India Limited (NSE). The Company’s Secured, 
Redeemable, Non-Convertible Debentures are listed 
on the Wholesale Debt Market (WDM) segment of 
the BSE.

 The Company has paid the applicable listing fees for 
the Financial Year 2014-2015 to BSE and NSE.

17.  DEMAT OF SECURITIES:

 Nearly 98.9% of total Equity Share Capital is held in 
dematerialized form with NSDL/CDSL. The Secured 
Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures are entirely 
held in dematerialized form.

18. SUBSIDIARY & JOINT VENTURE COMPANY:

 There are six wholly-owned Subsidiary Companies 
of the Company namely (I) Uttam Galva Holdings 
Limited in Dubai, (II) Atlantis International Services 
Limited in British Virgin Islands, (III) Uttam Galva 
Steels Netherlands B.V. in Netherland, (IV) Neelraj 
International Trade Limited in British Virgin Islands, 
(V) Uttam Galva Steels BVI Limited in British Virgin 
Islands and (VI) Uttam Galva Steels FZE in Ras Al 
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 ANNEXURE – III
REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

1. THE COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

 We, Uttam Galva Steels Limited, feel that the Corporate Governance is a process which enables the Company to 
operate in a systemic manner to meet its ethical, legal and business expectations and at the same time ful�ill its 
social responsibilities. The core value of Corporate Governance lies in integrity, transparency, accountability, high 
degree of disclosures, emphasis on product quality and adopting best business practices.

 Given below is the report of Directors on the practices prevalent on Corporate Governance in the Company.

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

 The Company believes that a Vibrant and Independent Board should be at the helm of affairs to ensure the highest 
levels of Corporate Governance. Accordingly, your Company has always had adequate competent and Independent 
Directors. For effective discharge of its functions and proper deliberations, Board has constituted various committees.

i.  Composition of the Board and details of Directorship(s) in other Companies:

 Your Company maintains optimum combination of Executive and Non-executive directors. As on 31st March, 
2014 the Board consisted of 9 Directors with considerable experience in their respective �ields. Of these 5 are 
Non- Executive Independent Directors including one Nominee Director representing LIC of India. The details 
of the Directors with regard to their other directorship (excluding Private Limited Companies and Section 25 
Companies under the Companies Act, 1956) and Committee Positions are as follows :-

Sr.
No.

Name of 
Director(s)

Executive/
Non-Executive/
Independent/

Nominee/Promoter

No. of Other 
Directorship

Chairman 
of the 
Board

Board 
Committee 

of which 
he/she is a 

Member

Chairman 
of the 

Committee

1. Shri Rajinder 
Miglani

Executive Chairman (Promoter) 8 2 2 2

 2. Shri P G Kakodkar Independent 2 - 1 -

3. Shri O P Gahrotra Independent 4 - 2 -

4. Shri D L Rawal Independent 1 - 1 1

5. Shri S T Parikh Independent 1 - 2 2

6. Smt. Swarna 
Prabha Sukumar

Independent (Nominee of LIC) - - - -

7. Shri Anuj R Miglani Managing Director (Promoter) 10 - 1 -

8. Shri Ankit Miglani Dy. Managing Director 
(Promoter)

8 - 1 -

9. Shri S G Tudekar Director (Works) - - - -

ii. Attendance of each Director at the Board Meeting during the Financial Year 2013-2014 and the last 
Annual General Meeting (AGM) :

Sr.
No.

Name of the Director(s) Attendance at
Board Meeting(s)

Attendance at
Last AGM

1. Shri Rajinder Miglani 5 Yes

2. Shri P G Kakodkar 4 No

3. Shri O P Gahrotra 4 Yes

4. Shri D L Rawal 4 Yes
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iii. Meetings: 

 During the Financial Year 2013- 2014, the Audit Committee met �ive times on following dates:-

 1) 24.05.2013 2) 03.08.2013  3) 21.10.2013  4) 30.10.2013  5) 31.01.2014 

4. REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 
 (Now known as NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE) :

i. Brief Description of Terms of Reference:-

 Pursuant to the Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement and Schedule XIII to the Companies Act, 1956, the terms of 
reference of the Remuneration Committee is to determine Company’s policy on remuneration to Whole-time 
Directors including pension and any compensation payments and also to approve payment of remuneration to 
Managing Director or Whole-time Directors. 

ii. Composition, Name of Members & Chairperson:-

 All the members of the Remuneration Committee are Non-Executive Independent Directors, Composition of 
the said Committee and details of meetings attended by the Directors during the year under review

Sr. No. Name of Director(s) Chairman/ Member
1. Shri S T Parikh Chairman

2. Shri P G Kakodkar Member

3. Smt. Swarna Prabha Sukumar Member

iii. Meeting :-

 During the Financial Year 2013-2014, there was no appointment/reappointment of any Whole-Time 
Director or Managing Director. Hence no approval was required for payment of remuneration. No Meeting of 
Remuneration Committee was held during the Financial Year 2013-2014. 

iv. Remuneration Policy:

 The remuneration to the Executive and Non-Executive Directors of the Company is approved by the 
Remuneration Committee as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company. Details of the Remuneration paid to 
the all directors are mentioned here below:

a. Non-Executive Directors:

 The Non-Executive/Independent Directors of the Company play a crucial role for ensuring the quality 
of Corporate Governance in a Company. They constitute a necessary component of a balanced Board 
structure where the in-depth knowledge of the Executive Directors is blended with the wider experience, 
unbiased opinions and knowledge of the Independent Directors. The contribution of the Non-Executive 
Directors is rewarded by sitting fees as remuneration for attending the Meetings of Board of Directors, 
Audit Committee, Committee of Directors and Shareholders/Investors Grievance Committee. Save and 
except the following, there are no pecuniary relationship or transactions of the Non- Executive Directors 
viz-a-viz the Company

Sr. No. Name of Director(s) Sitting Fees (`) Equity Shares held in the Company
1. Shri D L Rawal 80,000 -

2. Shri P G Kakodkar 1,20,000 -

3. Shri S T Parikh 1,51,000 53,300

4. Shri O P Gahrotra 1,15,000 -

5. Smt. Swarna Prabha Sukumar 60,000 -
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Name of 
Director(s)

Brief Resume Nature of 
expertise 
in speci�ic 

areas

The details of the 
Directorships 
/ Committee 

Memberships in other 
Companies (excluding 
Private Companies and 
Section 25 Companies)

Equity 
Shares 

held in the 
Company

Shri O P 
Gahrotra 

He is a Science Graduate and has done 
Masters in Financial Management 
from Jamnalal Bajaj Institute of 
management, Bombay and Masters 
in Social Science (Development 
Finance) from Birmingham 
University, United Kingdom. He is a 
Member of the Indian Administrative 
Service (IAS) belonging to the 1969 
Batch of the Maharashtra Cadre of 
the service. He retired in September, 
2006 as Additional Chief Secretary, 
Finance to the Government of 
Maharashatra.

Finance 1. Kalpataru Limited 

2. Trimax IT Infrastructure 
& Services Limited

3. THDC India Limited

4. INTARVO Technologies 
Limited

Name of the Company
Committee / Positions
1. Trimax IT Infrastructure 

& Services Limited

  Audit (Chairman) 

2. THDC India Limited

  Audit (Member) 

-

Shri D L 
Rawal 

He is a Science Graduate (Hons.) 
and Certi�ied Associate of Indian 
Institute of Banker (CAIIB). He has an 
experience of more than 40 years in 
operational and policy formulation 
in Corporate Banking. After serving  
in Punjab National Bank as General 
Manager and Canara Bank as an 
Executive Director, he retired as a 
Chairman & Managing Director of 
Dena Bank. He had also been on the 
Boards and Executive Committee of 
Life Insurance Corporation of India, 
Agriculture Finance Corporation 
and many other such renowned 
Institutions.

Banking and 
Finance

1. Lanco Vidharbha Thermal 
Power Ltd.

Name of the Company
Committee / Positions
1. Lanco Vidharbha Thermal 

Power Ltd. 

 Audit (Chairman)

-

Shri Ankit 
Miglani 

He is a Graduate in Economics 
with specialization in Finance from 
Wharton School, University of 
Pennsylvania, Philadelphia, U.S.A. He 
has joined the Board of Uttam Galva 
Steels Limited on 29th July, 2005. He is 
overseeing all the major commercial 
functions such as Marketing and 
procurement of Critical Raw 
Materials and is actively involved 
in formulating strategic alliances 
and undertaking strategic business 
initiatives. 

Commercial 1. Uttam Value Steels 
Limited

2. Uttam Galva Metallics 
Limited

3. Uttam Distribution 
Network Limited

4. Sindhudurg Iron and 
Steels Limited

5. Moira Madhujore Coal 
Limited

6. Kredence Multi Trading 
Limited

13,00,000
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Security holders. The committee considers and resolves the grievances of the Security holders of the Company 
including complaints related to Transfer of shares, Non-receipt of Balance Sheet, Non-receipt of declared 
Dividends etc. 

 During the Financial Year 2013-2014, the Committee had two Meetings i.e. on 30th October, 2013 and 31st 
January, 2014.

 Shri R Agrawal - Sr. Vice President & Company Secretary acts as the Compliance Of�icer.

ii. Status of the Complaints:

Number of Shareholders complaints received during the Financial Year 2013-2014 2

Number of complaints not solved to the satisfaction of the Shareholders - 

Number of pending complaints - 

7. SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES:
 Your Company does not have any Indian Subsidiary Company. However, the Company has Six Foreign Subsidiary 

Companies incorporated abroad.

8. EQUITY SHARES IN THE SUSPENSE ACCOUNT:
 In terms of Clause 5A(I) of the Listing Agreement, the Company reports that there are no Equity Shares lying in the 

Suspense Account.

9. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS: 
i. Location and time when the Last three Annual General Meeting(s) held: 
 The details of the Annual General Meeting held in last three years are as under:

Year Day, Date and Time Location
2010-2011 26th AGM held on Saturday, the 20th August, 

2011 at 11:00 a.m.
M C Ghia Hall, 18/20, K Dubhash Marg, 
Mumbai 400 001.

2011-2012 27th AGM held on Saturday, the 21st July, 2012 
at 11:00 a.m.

M C Ghia Hall, 18/20, K Dubhash Marg, 
Mumbai 400 001.

2012-2013 28th AGM held on Saturday, the 17th August, 
2013 at 11:00 a.m.

M C Ghia Hall, 18/20, K Dubhash Marg, 
Mumbai 400 001.

ii. Special Resolution passed in previous three Annual General Meetings: 

Year Special Resolution Particulars
2010-2011 - -

2011-2012 Re-appointment of Shri S G Tudekar, Director 
(Works).

For a period of 3 years starting from 28th 
October, 2011.

2012-2013 Alteration of Articles of Association of the 
Company.

Alteration of Article 3 in respect of 
Increase in Authorized Share Capital of the 
Company.

iii. During the last year the Company has not passed any Special/ Ordinary Resolution through Postal Ballot.
 The Board of Directors of the Company has proposed to pass the Special Resolution through postal ballot 

under section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 to authorize the Board of Directors to create the charge/ 
mortgage/ disposed of/ sale the property (ies) of the Company. 

 NOTE: All the Resolutions set out in the respective Notices for the above Meetings were duly passed by the 
Shareholders with the requisite majority in each case.
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xv.  Code of Conduct
 The Board has laid down a Code of Conduct for all Board Members and Senior Management of the Company 

which is posted on the website of the Company. All Board Members and Senior Management Personnel have 
af�irmed compliance with the Code on an annual basis. A declaration to this effect signed by the Managing 
Director of the Company is given below: 

 Certi�icate on Compliance with Code of Conduct
 I hereby con�irm that the Company has obtained from all the members of the Board and Management Personnel, 

af�irmation that they have complied with the Code of Business Conduct & Ethics for directors / Management 
Personnel in respect of the �inancial year 2013-2014.

 I further declare that the said Code of Conduct have been posted on the website of the Company in accordance 
with the Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.

 Anuj R Miglani
 Managing Director

 (DIN No 00287097)

xvi. Auditors’ Certi�icate on Corporate Governance:
 The Auditors’ Certi�icate on Compliance of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement relating to Corporate Governance 

is published as an Annexure to this Report.

xvii. CEO & CFO Certi�ication:
 Shri Anuj R Miglani, Managing Director and Shri Gursharan Singh Sawhney, Director (Finance) & Group CFO of 

the Company have given Annual Certi�ication on Financial reporting and internal controls to the Board in terms 
of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement. The Managing Director and the Chief Financial Of�icer also give quarterly 
Certi�ication on �inancial results while placing the �inancial results before the Board in terms of Clause 41 of the 
Listing Agreement. 

xviii. Adoption of Mandatory / Non- Mandatory Requirements of Clause 49:-
 During the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2014, the Company has duly complied with all the mandatory 

requirements and has adopted certain non-mandatory requirements of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement as 
mentioned below:

(i)  The Company has constituted Nomination & Remuneration Committee (as mentioned herein point no. 4) to 
determine the Company’s policy of remuneration to its Executive Directors.

(ii) The Company has adopted the Whistle blower & Vigil Mechanism in view to provide a mechanism for 
the directors and employees of the Company to approach Authorized person of the Company to report 
existing/probable violations of laws, rules, regulations or unethical conduct. 

xix. Shareholding Pattern: 
 Pattern of Equity Shares as on 31st March, 2014 is given here below:

Sr. 
No.

Category No. of Shares 
Held

% of holding

A. Promoters’ Holding
1. Promoters

 - Indian Promoters
 - Foreign Promoters

4,52,66,220
4,13,27,931

31.82
29.05

2. Persons acting in concert 0 0

Sub-Total (A) 8,65,94,151 60.87
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO,

THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
UTTAM GALVA STEELS LIMITED.
Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying �inancial statements of 

UTTAM GALVA STEELS LIMITED (“the Company”), which 

comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2014, the 

Statement of Pro�it and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement 

for the year then ended, and a summary of the signi�icant 

accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial 
Statements

The Company’s Management is responsible for the 
preparation of these �inancial statements that give a 
true and fair view of the �inancial position, �inancial 
performance and cash �lows of the Company in 
accordance with the Accounting Standards referred to in 
sub-section (3C) of Section 211 of the Companies Act, 1956 
(“the Act”) read with the General Circular 15/2013 dated 
13th September, 2013 the Ministry of Corporate Affairs 
in respect of Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
This responsibility includes the design, implementation 
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of the �inancial statements 
that give a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 
�inancial statements based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India. Those Standards require that we comply with the 
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the �inancial 
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the 
�inancial statements. The procedures selected depend 
on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment 
of the risk of material misstatements of the �inancial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making 
those risk assessments, the auditor considers the internal 
control relevant to the Company’s preparation and fair 
presentation of the �inancial statements in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, 

but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. An audit 
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting 
policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting 
estimates made by the Management, as well as evaluating 
the overall presentation of the �inancial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
suf�icient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us, the �inancial 
statements give the information required by the Act in 
the manner so required and give a true and fair view 
in conformity with the accounting principles generally 
accepted in India:

(a) in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs 
of the Company as at 31st March, 2014;

(b) in the case of the Statement of Pro�it and Loss, of the 
pro�it of the Company for the year ended on that date, 
and

(c) in the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash 
�lows of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) 
Order, 2003 (“the Order”) issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-section (4A) 
of Section 227 of the Act, we give in the Annexure a 
statement on the matters speci�ied in paragraphs 4 
and 5 of the Order. 

2. As required by Section 227(3) of the Act, we report 
that:

(a) We have obtained all the information and 
explanations which to the best of our knowledge 
and belief were necessary for the purposes of 
our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as 
required by law have been kept by the Company 
so far as it appears from our examination of 
those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, Statement of Pro�it and Loss, 
and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by 
this Report are in agreement with the books of 
account.
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the year from companies, �irms or other 
parties covered in the Register maintained 
under Section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956. 
Consequently, the requirements of Clauses (iii) 
(f) and (iii) (g) of paragraph 4 of the Order are 
not applicable.

4. In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the Company’s internal 
control systems commensurate with the size of 
the Company and the nature of its business with 
regard to purchases of inventories and �ixed assets 
and with regard to the sale of goods and services. 
During the course of our audit, we have not observed 
any continuing failure to correct major weakness in 
internal control system.

5.  In respect of the contracts or arrangements referred 
to in Section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956:

a) In our opinion and according to the 
information and explanations given to us, the 
transactions made in pursuance of contracts 
or arrangements, that need to be entered in the 
Register maintained under section 301 of the 
Companies Act, 1956 have been so entered.

b) In our opinion and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, the transactions 
made in pursuance of Contracts / arrangements 
entered in Register maintained under section 
301 Companies Act, 1956 and exceeding the 
` 5,00,000 in respect of each party during the 
year have been made at prices which appear 
reasonable having regard to the prevailing 
market price at the relevant time as per 
information available with the Company.

6. The Company has not accepted any deposits from the 
public to which the provisions of 58A, 58AA or any 
other relevant provision of the Companies Act, 1956 
and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 
1975 apply. Therefore, the provisions of clause (vi) of 
the paragraph 4 of the order are not applicable to the 
Company. 

7. In our opinion and according to information and 
explanation given to us, the Company has an internal 
audit system commensurate with the size and nature 
of its business.

8. To the best of our knowledge and according to 
the information and explanations given to us, the 
Company has received the report of a cost auditor 

as prescribed for maintenance of cost records under 
Section 209 (1) (d) of the Companies Act, 1956.

9. In respect of statutory dues:

a) According to the records of the Company, 
undisputed statutory dues including Provident 
Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, 
Sales Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Customs 
Duty, Excise Duty, Cess and any other statutory 
dues have been generally regularly deposited 
with the appropriate authorities. According 
to the information and explanations given to 
us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect 
of the aforesaid dues were outstanding as at 
31st March, 2014 for a period of more than six 
months from the date of becoming payable.

b) The disputed statutory dues aggregating to 
` 16.35 crore, that have not been deposited on 
account of disputed matters pending before 
appropriate authorities are referred below: 

Sr. 
No.

Nature of 
Duty Amount (`) Period Forum where 

dispute is pending

1
Service 

Tax
35,29,749 July 05 to July 07

Central Excise 
and Service Tax 
Appellate Tribunal

2
Service 

Tax
1,61,751

April 06 to 
October 06

Central Excise 
and Service Tax 
Appellate Tribunal

3
Excise 
Duty

64,84,307 Dec 07 to June 08

Central Excise 
and Service Tax 
Appellate Tribunal

4
Excise 
Duty

30,82,563 Dec 07 to June 08

Central Excise 
and Service Tax 
Appellate Tribunal

5
Excise 
Duty

3,34,33,367 July 10 to Feb 11
Commissioner 
Appeals

6
Customs 

Duty
11,67,80,968 F.Y. 2008-09

Commissioner of 
Customs

10. The Company does not have accumulated losses at 
the end of the �inancial year. The Company has not 
incurred any cash losses during the �inancial year 
covered by our audit and the preceding �inancial year. 

11. Based on our audit procedures and according to 
the information and explanation given to us, the 
Company has not defaulted in the repayment of its 
dues to Financial Institutions, Banks and Debenture 
Holders.

12. According to the information and explanations given 













42

Uttam Galva Steels Limited

(c) (i) Foreign Currency Term Loan Contracts, covered by Foreign Exchange Swaps are booked at contracted 
rates.

 (ii) Other Foreign Currency Term Loan balances are accounted at Exchange Rate prevailing at the 
year end, and such gain / loss, where these relate to the acquisition of depreciable �ixed assets, are 
adjusted to the carrying cost of such assets and in other cases are amortized over the period of such 
long term monetary item.

 (iii) The company does not enter into derivative contracts for trading or speculative purposes.

(d) Such gain / loss in transactions referred in para (c) above, and other foreign currency contracts and / or 
derivative contracts and relevant exchange gain / loss thereto, are considered as �inance cost.

1.03 Borrowing cost, Premium on Redemption of Debentures / Debts:
 (a) Borrowing costs attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets as de�ined in Accounting 

Standard 16 “Borrowing Costs” are capitalized as part of the cost of such asset upto the date when the asset 
is ready for its intended use. Other borrowing costs are expensed as incurred.

 (b)  Pursuant to the Reschedule / Realignment Scheme, interest payable during 2000-2009 �inancial years is 
lower than the average interest rate during 2000-2014 �inancial years. The company is treating interest 
payable (yearly rate) as interest accrued.

 (c) On rescheduling and realignment of term debts, �inancial cost incurred is treated as accrued on date of 
realignment of realigned term debts and provided in the relevant �inancial year.

1.04 Commodity Hedging Transactions:
 In respect of commodity hedging transactions, the gain / loss on settlement and provisions for gain / losses at the 

year end are appropriately accounted along with material cost in Pro�it and Loss Account.

1.05 The Treatment of Expenditure during Construction Period:
(a) Expenditure directly related to particular �ixed assets is capitalized to those �ixed assets. All indirect 

expenses are apportioned to various �ixed assets on a reasonable basis. This is done once the construction 
and erection work is completed, pending which the accumulated amount is disclosed as Capital Work-in-
progress pending capitalization under �ixed asset.

(b) Interest on Loans are capitalised upto the date on which the asset is ‘Put to Use’. Interest includes exchange 
�luctuation on Foreign Currency Term Loans. It is in line with Accounting Standards on Borrowing Cost 
and Long Term Foreign Currency Debts and Accounting Standards on Fluctuation on Foreign Exchange 
currency.

(c) The Income and Expenditure during trial runs is included in the Pro�it & Loss Account. Excess of expenditure 
over income is capitalised.

(d) Temporary surplus in short term i.e. liabilities over assets are used for Capital Work-In-Progress. Interest 
and consequential cost is appropriately accounted.

1.06 Fixed Assets and Depreciation:
(a) Fixed assets are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation.

(b) Cost excludes Cenvat credit, sales tax and service tax credit and such other levies / taxes. Depreciation on 
such assets is claimed on ‘reduced’ cost.

(c) Depreciation on �ixed assets has been provided on straight line method at the rates speci�ied, in the Schedule 
XIV of the Companies Act, 1956, in line with Noti�ication No. GSR/756(E) dated, 16th December 1993.

(d) Depreciation on assets acquired during the year has been provided on pro-rata basis; from the date on 
which it is ‘Put to Use’.

(e) Computer Software is depreciated over an estimated useful life of 5 Years.

1.06A Impairment of Assets:
 Fixed Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances warrant that the 

carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by 
a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to future net discounted cash �lows expected to be generated 
by the asset. If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognised is measured by the 
amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the fair value of the asset.
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1.13 Export entitlements / obligations:
(a) Duty free import of raw materials under Advance Authorisation (DEEC) for imports as per import and 

export policy are matched with exports made / produced. Bene�it / Obligation are accounted by making 
suitable adjustments in raw material consumption.

(b) The bene�its accrued under the Duty Drawback Scheme, Focus Market Scheme, Focus Product Scheme and 
Duty Free Import Authorisation (DFIA) as per the relevant import and export policies during the year are 
included under the head:

 (i) Sales: Export incentives

 (ii) Raw material consumed

 (iii) Stores & Spares consumed

(c) Export incentives receivable on export performance are recognised in pursuance to ‘Accounting Standard 
9 on Revenue Recognition’, (AS-9) with reference to certainty of collectability of such export incentives.

1.14 (a) Sales are recognised at the time of dispatch to customers / endorsement of documents and includes Central 
Excise Duty; as may be applicable.

(b) Finished goods captively consumed as packing materials are excluded from sales. Transfer Price, as taken 
in Central Excise Duty records, is treated as the packing material cost.

1.15 Deferred sales tax incentive available to the Company under Maharashtra Value Added Tax (MVAT) is recognised 
as sales in case Net Present Value (NPV) is duly paid to the designated authority before the approval of annual 
accounts.

1.16 Customs Duty:
 The Company has been accounting for custom duty liability, as may be applicable, in respect of imported raw 

material lying in bonded warehouse as and when they are ex-bonded.

1.  17 Central Excise Duty and Service Tax:
(a) The Company is accounting liability for excise duty on �inished goods as and when goods are cleared as per 

consistent practice, in pursuance to the accepted practice of the Excise authorities.

 (i) Inventory valuation

(1) Finished goods in the plant at the close of the year are valued inclusive of excise duty.

(2) Raw materials and work in process are valued exclusive of Cenvat claimed.

 (ii) Pro�it / Loss for the year remain unaffected by inclusion / exclusion of Excise Duty in inventory 
valuation referred in clauses (1) and (2) above.

(b) The Company is accounting liability for Service Tax under Reverse Charge Mechanism for various services 
availed by the company, at the time of booking an expenditure. The credit for Input Services Tax is claimed 
as per appropriate laws, rules and regulations.

1.18 Employee Bene�its:
 (a) Short Term Employee Bene�its
  All employee bene�its payable / available within 12 months of rendering the services are classi�ied as short 

term employee bene�its. Bene�its such as salaries, wages, bonus etc, are recognized in the P&L account in 
the period in which the employee renders the related services.

 (b) Long Term Employee Bene�its
 Post employment and other long term employee bene�its are recognized as an expense in the Pro�it and 

Loss Account for the year in which the employee has rendered services. The expense is recognized at the 
present value of the amounts payable determined using Actuarial Valuation Techniques. Actuarial gains 
and losses in respect of post-employment  and other long term bene�its are charged to Pro�it and Loss 
Account.

1.19 Inter Unit transactions are eliminated to the extent possible.
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38.   Segment Reporting
  The Company is manufacturing Steel Products and also has a Captive Power Plant, hence it  is reporting its results 

in single segment as required by AS-17.

39.  Sundry Debit Balances and Credit balances are subject to con�irmations.

40. (a) Expenditure in Foreign Currency ` in Crore

Sr.No. Particulars 2013-2014 2012-2013

(i) Interest & Upfront Fees 92.60 23.95

(ii) Legal, Professional & Consultation fee 3.80 0.93

(iii) Commission 1.10 1.44

(iv) International Freight 53.59 39.16

(v) Travelling Expenses 0.58 0.39

(vi) Others 0.12 0.17

 (b) Earnings in Foreign Currency: ` in Crore  

Particulars 2013-2014 2012-2013

F.O.B. Value of Exports 1,923.99 1,919.76

41.  Previous Year’s �igures are regrouped and rearranged wherever necessary.

As per our Report of even date For and on behalf of the Board

For Prakkash Muni & Associates
Chartered Accountants Rajinder Miglani  Anuj R Miglani
Firm Registration No. 111792 W Chairman Managing Director

Prakkash R. Muni Gursharan Singh Sawhney R Agrawal
Partner Director (Finance) & Group CFO Sr. Vice President & Company Secretary
Membership No. 30544

Place  :  Mumbai
Date :  30th May, 2014
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors of Uttam Galva Steels Limited
We have audited the accompanying consolidated �inancial statements (the “Consolidated Financial Statements”) of 
Uttam Galva Steels Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries and its joint venture companies; hereinafter referred to 
as the “Group” (refer Note 1 to the attached Consolidated �inancial statements) which comprise the Consolidated Balance 
Sheet as at 31st March, 2014,the Consolidated Statement of Pro�it and Loss and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for 
the year then ended and a summary of signi�icant accounting policies and other explanatory information which we have 
signed under reference to this report.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements
The Company’s Management is responsible for the preparation of these consolidated �inancial statements that give a true 
and fair view of the consolidated �inancial position, consolidated �inancial performance and consolidated cash �lows of 
the Group in accordance with Accounting Standards noti�ied under the Companies Act, 1956 (the Act) (which continue 
to be applicable in respect of Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 in terms of General Circular 15/2013 dated 13th 
September, 2013 of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs).This responsibility includes the design, implementation and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated �inancial statements 
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated �inancial statements based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those 
Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the consolidated �inancial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated 
�inancial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risk 
of material misstatements of the consolidated �inancial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the Company’s preparation and fair presentation of the 
consolidated �inancial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by 
Management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated �inancial statements.

We did not audit the �inancial statements of subsidiaries and joint ventures included in the consolidated �inancial 
statements, which constitute total assets (net) of ` 32.85 crore as at 31st March, 2014. Total revenue of ` 4.08 crore, net 
loss of  ̀  5.65 crore and net cash out�lows amounting to ̀  46.26 crore  for the year then ended. These �inancial statements 
and other �inancial information have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us, and our 
opinion on the consolidated �inancial statements to the extent they have been derived from such �inancial statements is 
based solely on the report of such other auditors.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suf�icient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
Based on our audit and on consideration of reports of other auditors on separate �inancial statements and on the other 
�inancial information of the components of the Group as referred to in paragraph above, and to the best of our information 
and according to the explanations given to us, in our opinion, the accompanying consolidated �inancial statements give a 
true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India:

 (a) In the case of the Consolidated Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31st March,  2014;

 (b) In the case of the Consolidated Statement of Pro�it and Loss ,of the pro�it for the year ended on that date; and

 (c) In the case of the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, of the cash �lows for the year ended on that date.

For Prakkash Muni & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No: 111792W

Prakkash R. Muni
Place: Mumbai  Partner
Date: 30th May, 2014  Membership No: 30544
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SIGNIFCANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY AND 
ITS SUBSIDIARIES FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2013-2014
1.0 Accounting Policies:
 Most of the accounting policies of the Holding Company and that of the subsidiaries are similar. 

2.0 Principal for Consolidation:
 The consolidated �inancial statements relate to UTTAM GALVA STEELS LIMITED (“The Company”), its subsidiary 

companies and joint ventures. The consolidated �inancial statements have been prepared on the following basis:

(a) The �inancial statement of the company and its subsidiary companies have been consolidated on a line-by-
line basis by adding together the book value of like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, after fully 
eliminating intra-group balances and intra-group transaction resulting in unrealized pro�it and losses as per 
Accounting Standard -21 “Consolidated Financial Statements” noti�ied by Companies (Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2006.

(b) In case of foreign subsidiaries, being non-integral operation, revenue items are consolidated at the average rate 
prevailing during the year. All assets and liabilities are converted at the rates prevailing at the end of the year. 
Any exchange difference arising on consolidation is recognised in the foreign currency translation reserve.

(c) The difference between the cost of investments in the subsidiaries and joint ventures, and the Company’s share 
of net assets at the time of acquisition of shares in subsidiaries and joint ventures is recognised in �inancial 
statements as Goodwill or Capital Reserve as the case may be.

(d) The difference between the proceeds from disposal of investment in subsidiaries and the carrying amount of 
its assets less liabilities as on the date of disposal is recognized in the consolidated Statement of Pro�it and Loss 
being the pro�it or loss on disposal of investment in subsidiary.

(e) Interest in joint venture have been accounted by using the proportionate consolidation method as per 
Accounting Standard -27 “Financial Reporting of Interest In Joint Venture” Noti�ied by Companies(Accounting 
Standards) Rules 2006.

(f) The �inancial statements of the subsidiaries and joint ventures are drawn up to the same reporting date as that 
of the Company i.e. 31st March, 2014 for the purpose of consolidation.

(g) As far as possible, the consolidated �inancial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for 
like transactions and other events in similar circumstances and are presented in the same manner as the 
Company’s separate �inancial statements.

3.0 The audited �inancial statements of foreign subsidiaries have been prepared in accordance with the Generally 
Accepted Accounting Principle of its Country of Incorporation or International Financial Reporting Standards.

4.0 The list of Subsidiaries & Joint Ventures, which form part of consolidation and The Company’s holdings therein 
are as under:

Sr. No. Name of the Company Country of Incorporation % of Holding
A. Subsidiaries
1. Uttam Galva Holdings Limited Dubai 100.00%

2. Atlantis International Services Company Limited BVI 100.00%

3 Uttam Galva Steels, Netherlands B.V. Netherlands 100.00%

4 Neelraj International Trade Limited BVI 100.00%

5 Uttam Galva Steels ( BVI) Limited BVI 100.00%

6 Uttam Galva Steel FZE Ras Al Khaimah 100.00%

B. Joint Venture.
1. Texturing Technology Private Limited (TTPL) India 50.00%

2 Moira Madhujore Coal Limited India 30.70%
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Note 22 Other Expenses ` in Crore
Particulars 2013-2014 2012-2013

Manufacturing Expenses
Power Consumption  138.54  130.53 

Coal Consumed  83.34  145.30 

Power Captively Consumed  (112.36)  (118.16)

Power Captively Consumed - Steam  (7.27)  (9.06)

Consumption of Steam  7.27  9.06 

Fuel Consumption  91.78  66.03 

Water Charges  2.30  2.59 

Stores & Spares Consumed  58.75  46.44 

Repairs & Maintenance to Plant  31.42  25.74 

Other Manufacturing Expenses  23.69  42.81 

Total - Manufacturing Expenses  317.46  341.28 

Selling and Distribution Expenses
International Freight 81.55 66.78 

F.O.B. Expenses 25.44 19.11 

Local Freight 30.28 26.56 

Brokerage & Commission 2.49 2.70 

Other Expenses 9.35 8.06 

Packing Material Consumed 60.19 52.60 

Total - Selling and Distribution Expenses 209.30 175.81 

Administrative Expenses
Insurance 9.98 7.02 

Travelling & Conveyance 6.28 4.93 

Rent, Rates & Taxes 5.13 4.02 

Legal , Professional & Consultancy Charges 13.91 9.20 

Repairs & Maintenance to Building 6.91 7.17 

Repairs & Maintenance to others 2.63 1.92 

Security charges 2.84 2.42 

Other Expenses 14.88 11.35 

Remuneration to CMD/DMD 3.12 3.12 

Sundry Balance Written Off/(Written back) 0.02 -0.90 

Payment to Auditors - Audit Fees 0.31 0.31 

 - Tax Audit & Certi�ications 0.05 0.10 

 - Expenses Reimbursed 0.03 0.05 

Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets 0.12 0.00 

Total - Administrative Expenses 66.21 50.71 

Total - Other Expenses 592.97 567.80 

Note 23 Finance Costs ` in Crore
Particulars 2013-2014 2012-2013

Interest Expense on:

(i) Borrowings - Long Term  185.29  256.99 

(i) Borrowings - Short Term  207.70  185.53 
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28. Taxation.

(a) The Company does not have taxable income as per the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961. However, it is 
liable to MAT (Minimum Alternate Tax).

(b) The Company has provided for deferred tax liability to the tune of ` 27.60 Crore (Previous Year ` 46.49 Crore) 
arising on account of timing difference between the book and tax pro�it of the period. The same is net of tax 
incentive available at a future date and deferred tax payable at future date. 

29. Earnings Per Share (EPS)
Earnings Per Share (EPS) Basic and Diluted 2013-2014 2012-2013

a) Including Extraordinary Income, Exceptional Income & Prior Period Income
 Pro�it for the Year 29.67 54.81

 Weighted Average No. of Ordinary Shares of `10 each for Basic EPS 14,22,60,103 12,24,79,281

 Earnings Per Share (EPS) Basic & Diluted (Rupees) 2.09 4.48

b) Excluding Extraordinary Income, Exceptional Income & Prior Period Income  

 Pro�it for the Year 24.23 38.81

 Weighted Average No. of Ordinary Shares of `10 each for Basic EPS 14,22,60,103 12,24,79,281

 Earnings Per Share (EPS) Basic & Diluted (Rupees) 1.70 3.17

30. In all the companies under consolidation, depreciation is charged on Straight Line Method (SLM), where as in case 
of TTPL depreciation of ` 0.90 Crore is charged on Written Down Value Method (WDV), which is 0.42 % of total 
depreciation. 

31. In respect of Jointly Controlled Entities, the Company’s share of assets, liabilities, incomes and expenditures of 
Joint Venture Company is as follows:

 ` in Crore

Particulars
Moira Madhujore Coal Limited Texturing Technology Private Limited

As on
31st March, 2014

As on
31st March, 2013

As on
31st March, 2014

As on
31st March, 2013

1. Assets
a) Fixed Assets (Incl. CWIP) 0.91 8.52 5.54 6.43

b) Non - Current Assets 0.10 7.77 0.27 0.09

c) Current Assets 0.83 2.08 2.22 1.79

2. Liabilities
a) Secured / Unsecured Loans - - - 1.16

b) Non - Current Liabilities - - 0.48 0.51

c) Current Liabilities 0.06 0.10 1.67 1.37

3. Income 0.06 0.06 3.52 3.60

4. Expenditure 0.01 0.02 2.49 1.88
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33. Ferro Zinc International (FZE) has ceased to be a step-down Subsidiary of the Company during the year ended 
31st March, 2014. Therefore the �inancial statement of Ferro Zinc International (FZE) will not form part of 
consolidated �inancial statements of the Company with effect from 1st April, 2013.

34. Previous Year’s �igures are regrouped and rearranged wherever necessary.

As per our Report of even date For and on behalf of the Board

For Prakkash Muni & Associates
Chartered Accountants Rajinder Miglani  Anuj R Miglani
Firm Registration No. 111792 W Chairman Managing Director

Prakkash R. Muni Gursharan Singh Sawhney R Agrawal
Partner Director (Finance) & Group CFO Sr. Vice President & Company Secretary
Membership No. 30544

Place  :  Mumbai

Date :  30th May, 2014



IMPORTANT COMMUNICATION TO MEMBERS

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs undertook a “Green Initiative in the Corporate Governance” by allowing 

paperless compliance by the companies and has issued circular Nos. 17/2011 dated 21-4-2011 and 18/2011 

dated 29-4-2011 stating that service of notice / documents including Annual Report can be sent by electronic 

mode to its members. To support this Green initiative of the Government in full measure, members who have not 

registered their e-mail addresses so far, are requested to register their e-mail addresses and changes therein from 

time to time along with their name, address and Folio No./Client Id Nos., in respect of their shareholding with:

1) The Registrar and Share Transfer Agents viz. Universal Capital Securities Pvt. Ltd. for shares held in physical 

form and;

2) The concerned Depository Participants in respect of shares held in electronic / demat mode

Upon registration of e-mail address(es), the Company would send Notices / Circulars / Documents including 

Annual Report and other communications via electronic mode.

In case any Member opts / insists for physical copies of above documents, the same would be send to him by post 

free of cost at the address registered with the Company.

Note : You can register your e-mail address at the Company’s E-mail address: shares@uttamgalva.com

REGISTRATION FORM FOR RECEIVING DOCUMENTS IN ELECTRONIC MODE

M/s. Universal Capital Securities Private Limited
(Unit: UGSL)
21, Shakil Niwas, Mahakali Caves Road,

Andheri (East), Mumbai – 400 093.

I/We, am/are member/s of M/s. UTTAM GALVA STEELS LIMITED and hereby exercise my/our option to receive 

the documents such as Notices / Circulars / Documents including Annual Reports and other communications 

in electronic mode pursuant to the circular Nos. 17/2011 date 21-4-2011 and 18/2011 dated 29-4-2011 by the 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs. Please register my following e-mail id in your records for sending communication 

through electronic mode.

Name of First Member 

Joint Holder – 1 

Joint Holder – 2 

E-mail id for registration 

Date:  Signature (1st holder) 

 Regd. Folio /Client Id No. 
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If undelivered please return to:

21, SHAKIL NIWAS,

MAHAKALI CAVES ROAD,

ANDHERI (EAST),

MUMBAI - 400 093.

Tel. No. : 022 28207203 / 05

M/S UNIVERSAL CAPITAL SECURITIES PVT. LTD.

(UNIT: UGSL)
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NOTICE is hereby given that the 28th ANNUAL 
GENERAL MEETING of the Members of the Company 
will be held at 11.00 a.m. on Saturday, the 17th Day of 
August, 2013 at M. C. Ghia Hall, 18/20, K. Dubhash Marg, 
Mumbai- 400 001 to transact the following business :

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1.	 To consider and adopt the Statement of Profit & Loss 
for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2013 and 
the Balance Sheet as at that date and Reports of the 
Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon.

2.	 To appoint a Director in place of Shri S P Talwar, who 
retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself 
for re-appointment.

3.	 To appoint a Director in place of Shri S T Parikh, who 
retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself 
for re-appointment.

4.	 To re-appoint M/s. Prakkash Muni & Associates, 
Chartered Accountants, (Registration No. 111792W) 
as the Statutory Auditor for the Financial Year 2013-
2014, to hold office from the conclusion of this 
Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of the 29th 
Annual General Meeting and to authorize the Board 
of Directors to decide their remuneration.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

5.	 To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or 
without modification(s), the following resolution as 

an Ordinary Resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of 
Sections 198, 269, 309, 310 read with Schedule XIII 
and other applicable provisions of the Companies 
Act, 1956 (including any statutory modification or 
re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force); 
Articles 23, 24 and 25 of the Articles of Association 
of the Company; Shri Rajinder Miglani be and is 
hereby re-appointed as the Executive Chairman of 
the Company for a period of three years effective 
from 31st December, 2012 to 30th December, 2015 
on the following terms and conditions:-

a)	 Remuneration

(i)	 Rs.10,00,000/- per month by way of salary, 
perquisites and other allowances.

b)	 Benefits

(i)	 Contribution to Provident Fund and 
Superannuation Fund as per rules of the 
Company.

(ii)	 Gratuity payable at a rate not exceeding 
half a month’s salary for each completed 
year of service.

(iii)	 Leave and Encashment of leave as per the 
rules of the Company.

(iv)	 Free use of Car with driver and free 
telephone facility at Residence for the 
business of the Company.

(v)	 Such other benefits and amenities as may 
be provided by the Company to other 
senior officers from time to time.

c)	 The Company shall pay to or reimburse to the 
Chairman all costs, charges and expenses that 
may have been or may be incurred by him for 
the purpose of or on behalf of the Company.

d)	 In the event of the loss or inadequacy of profit 
in any financial year during his tenure as the 
Executive Chairman, the aforesaid remuneration 
will be treated as minimum Remuneration 
subject to approval of Central Government, if 
any, as may be required.

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of 
Directors of the Company be and are hereby 
authorised to vary, alter or modify the above-stated 
remuneration in accordance with provision of 
Schedule XIII to the Companies Act, 1956 as may be 
agreed to by the Board of Directors and Shri Rajinder 
Miglani.

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of 
Directors be and are hereby authorized to take all 
such steps, action as may be necessary, proper and 
expedient to give effect to this resolution.”

6.	 To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or 
without modification(s), the following resolution as 
an Ordinary Resolution

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of 
Sections 198, 269, 309, 310 read with Schedule XIII 

NOTICE
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time being and to vary, modify or abrogate any such 
rights, privileges or conditions in such manner as may 
be permitted by the Companies Act, 1956 or such 
statutory modifications thereof or provided by the 
Articles of Association of the Company for the time 
being.

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of 
Directors be and are hereby authorized to file 
necessary Forms/Returns with the Registrar of 
Companies, Maharashtra and to take all such steps, 
action as may be necessary, proper and expedient to 
give effect to this resolution.”

9.	 To considered an if thought fit, to pass, with or 
without modification(s) the following resolution as 
Special Resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 31 and any 
other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies 
Act, 1956, the existing Article 3 of the Articles of 
Association of the Company be and is hereby deleted 
and substituted by the following Article 3.

	 Article 3:

	 The authorized Capital of the Company is  
Rs. 500,00,00,000/- (Rupees Five Hundred Crores 
Only), divided into 50,00,00,000 (Fifty Crore) Equity 
Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each with power 
to increase or reduce the Share Capital with the 
rights, privileges and conditions, attaching thereto, 
as are provided by the Articles of Association of the 
Company for the time being into such preferential, 
qualified or special rights, privileges or conditions 
as may be determined by or in accordance with 
the Articles of Association of the Company for the 
time being and to vary, modify or abrogate any such 
rights, privileges or conditions in such manner as may 
be permitted by the Companies Act, 1956 or such 
statutory modifications thereof or provided by the 
Articles of Association of the Company for the time 
being.

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of 
Directors be and are hereby authorized to file 
necessary Forms/Returns with the Registrar of 
Companies, Maharashtra and to take all such steps, 
actions as may be necessary, proper and expedient to 
give effect to this resolution.”

10.	 To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or 
without modification(s), the following resolution as 
an Ordinary Resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT Shri D L Rawal who was 
appointed as an Additional Director pursuant to the 
provisions of Section 260 of the Companies Act, 
1956 with effect from the conclusion of the meeting 
of the Board of Directors held on 24th May, 2013, 
holds the office upto the date of this Annual General 
Meeting and in respect of whom the Company has 
received a notice in writing under Section 257 of the 
Companies Act, 1956 from a member proposing 
his candidature for the office of a Director, be and 
is hereby appointed as a Director of the Company 
liable to retire by rotation.”

11.	 To consider, and if thought fit, to pass with or 
without modification, the following resolution, as an 
Ordinary Resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions 
of Section 293(1)(d) and any other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 1956 and 
in supersession of the resolution passed at the 16th 
Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 10th 
November 2001, the consent of the Company be and 
is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the 
Company to borrow any sum(s) of monies, which 
together with the monies already borrowed by the 
Company (apart from the temporary loans obtained 
from the Company’s Bankers in the ordinary course 
of business) may exceed the aggregate of the paid 
up capital of the Company and its free reserves ( 
i.e. Reserves not set apart for any specific purpose) 
provided the aggregate of the monies borrowed and 
to be borrowed and outstanding at any one time shall 
not exceed Rs. 10,000 crores (Rupees Ten Thousand 
Crores only).”

By Order of the Board 
For Uttam Galva Steels Limited

R Agrawal 
Sr. Vice President & Company Secretary

Registered Office: 
Uttam House, 
69, P.D’Mello Road, 
Mumbai – 400 009.	 
Date: 24th May, 2013
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Pursuant to Section 173 (2) of the Companies Act, 
1956

Item No.5

Shri Rajinder Miglani, aged about 67 years, is an Industrialist 
and joined the Board as the Promoter Director since the 
inception of the Company. He is a Science graduate and 
having more than 47 years of experience in the Steel 
Industry.

He was re-appointed as the Executive Chairman of the 
Company by the Board of Directors at its Meeting held 
on 3rd November, 2012 for the further period of three 
years, commencing from 31st December, 2012 to 30th 
December, 2015 on terms and conditions as set out in the 
Ordinary Resolution at Item No 5.

The terms of re-appointment of Shri Rajinder Miglani, as 
set out in the Ordinary Resolution at Item No 5, should 
also be treated as the abstract under Section 302 of the 
Companies Act, 1956.

Shri Rajinder Miglani is interested or concerned in this 
resolution. Shri Anuj R Miglani and Shri Ankit Miglani 
are also concerned or interested in this resolution being 
the relatives of Shri Rajinder Miglani. None of the other 
Directors are in any way concerned or interested in this 
resolution.

The Board accordingly recommends the resolution set 
out in Item No. 5 for the approval of the Members.

Item No. 6

Shri Anuj R Miglani, aged about 39 years, has done 
Mechanical Engineering from the Imperial College of 
Science & Technology, London. He is managing the overall 
operations at the works and also playing significant role 
in overall management of the Company. He joined the 
Board in November, 2001.

He was re-appointed as the Managing Director of the 
Company by the Board of Directors at its Meeting held on 
3rd November, 2012 for the further period of three years, 
commencing from 10th November, 2012 to 9th November, 
2015 on terms and conditions as set out in the Ordinary 
Resolution at Item No 6.

The terms of re-appointment of Shri Anuj R Miglani, as 
set out in the Ordinary Resolution at Item No. 6, should 
also be treated as the abstract under Section 302 of the 
Companies Act, 1956.

Shri Anuj R Miglani is interested or concerned in this 
resolution. Shri Rajinder Miglani and Shri Ankit Miglani 
are also concerned or interested in this resolution being 
the relatives of Shri Anuj R Miglani. None of the other 
Directors are in any way concerned or interested in this 
resolution.

The Board accordingly recommends the resolution set 
out in Item No. 6 for the approval of the Members.

Item No. 7, 8 and 9:

The Members were informed that the Company 
envisages requirements of funds in future as the Company 
is in evaluating the various projects and also looking for 
the expansion and the modernization of current projects. 
Consequently, to meet the requirement of funds, it 
is necessary to increase the Authorized Share Capital 
of the Company from the existing Rs.175,00,00,000/- 
(Rupees One Hundred and Seventy Five Crores only) 
divided into 17,50,00,000 (Seventeen Crores Fifty Lacs) 
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only) each to  
Rs. 500,00,00,000/- (Rupees Five Hundred Crores only) 
divided into 50,00,00,000 (Fifty Crores) Equity Shares of 
Rs.10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each, ranking pari-passu in all 
respects with the existing Equity Shares.

The proposed increase in Authorized Share Capital 
requires approval of Members at a General Meeting. 
Consequent upon this increase, Company’s Memorandum 
of Association and Article of Association will require 
alteration, so as to reflect the increase in the Authorized 
Share Capital. Hence, the resolutions under Section 94, 
16 and 31 of the Companies Act, 1956 as set out in Item 
No. 7, 8 and 9 of the given notice is proposed for your 
approval.

The Board accordingly recommends the resolutions set 
out in Item No. 7, 8 & 9 for the approval of the members.

None of the Directors are in any way concerned or 
interested in the aforesaid resolutions.

Item no. 10

Shri D L Rawal, aged about 62 years, has been appointed 
on the Board of the Company as an Additional Director 
with effect from 24th May, 2013. He holds Bachelors 
degree in Science (Hons.) and C A I I B. He has more 
than 40 years banking experience spanning wide variety of 
functions including Board levels. He is a former Chairman 
and Managing Director of Dena Bank.

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT
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To,

The Members

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 28th Report 
on the business and operations of the Company, along 
with the Audited Statement of Accounts for the Financial 
Year ended 31st March, 2013.

1. 	 FINANCIAL RESULTS (Stand-alone Basis):

	 (Rs. in Crores)

PARTICULARS Year ended
31st March, 

2013

Year ended
31st March, 

2012
Gross Revenue from 
Operations

6252.34 5475.38

Earning before Interest, 
Tax, Depreciation and 
Amortization (EBIDTA)

588.59 528.05

Finance Cost 304.64 267.32
Depreciation 182.58 127.37
Profit Before Tax (PBT) 135.32 141.00
Provision for Tax 73.77 63.04
Profit After Tax (PAT) 61.55 77.96

2.	 OPERATIONS:

	 Your Company has achieved a turnover of  
Rs. 6252.34 Crores as against Rs. 5475.38 Crores in 
the previous year and at the same time your Company 
posted the Profit before Tax of Rs. 135.32 Crores as 
against Rs. 141.00 Crores in the previous year. The 
decline in the Profit before Tax was due to combined 
effect of higher Finance Cost and Depreciation cost 
incurred during the Year.

	 Your Company has envisaged the various projects and 
also looking for the expansion and the modernization 
of current projects. consequently in view of 
the Capex requirement for proposed expansion 
projects of the Company, the Board of Directors 
are in opinion that Cash flow should be conserved 
and hence decided to plough back the entire profit 
earned by the Company and have not recommended 
any dividend.

3.	 EXPORTS:

	 Your Company has registered growth in exports 

volume by 18% and has added 3 more new countries 
–Martinique, Bahamas and Kyrgyzstan which 
makes now total list of countries serviced  to 148. 
Your Company has maintained its presence in the 
International Market in spite of the Global slowdown 
and currency crises in some of the countries.

	 The Global Economic situation has shown signs 
of marginal growth in USA and Russia  where your 
Company’s products are well established and 
recognized as quality supplier. The sales growth in 
these 2 countries are recorded as 28% and 16% 
respectively compared to last year. Growth in 
emerging market and developing economies is  also 
showing double digit and  positive trends in line 
with expectation. This is expected to provide wide 
base to our international business.

	 Your Company has been the recipient of 17 EEPC 
Awards from the Ministry of Commerce and 
Industry, Government of India for its outstanding 
exports performance.

4.	 DOMESTIC MARKET:

	 In the Original Equipment Manufacturer (OEM) 
market, the Company has been focusing on high 
growth, profitable and niche areas especially in the 
Home Appliances, Automotive, Construction and 
Electrical Equipment segments and has thus moved 
up the value chain in these markets.

	 Your Company has achieved a volume growth of 21% 
in the Appliance segment over the last fiscal and has 
made commendable gains in establishing the product 
for Refrigerators and Washing Machines components 
with majors like Whirlpool, Videocon Group, 
Samsung and Haier. For Vizi coolers and freezers the 
products are firmly established with Bluestar, Voltas, 
Frigoglass and Western Refrigeration.

	 In the Automotive segment, though volume growth 
has been marginal due to depressed markets in the 
west, your Company has achieved growth of 36% in 
value added products in this segment over the last 
fiscal. This has been achieved through an aggressive 
product development programme for special grades 
for automotive and electrical equipment industry.

	 Your Company has firmly established itself in the 
two and four wheeler (Passenger and Commercial) 

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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	 All the certificates under ISO: 9001-2008, ISO: 14001- 
2004, ISO/TS 16949:2009 and OHSAS 18001-2007 
for Quality Management, Environment Management, 
Technical specifications and Occupational Health and 
Safety Management respectively, are being maintained 
by the Company after periodical surveillance audits.

g)	 Discussion on Financial Performance with 
respect to Operational Performance

	 The financial performance with respect to the 
operational performance during the year under 
review was satisfactory inspite of sluggish and bearish 
market conditions.

h) 	 Material Development in Human Resources / 
Industrial Relations Front, including Number of 
People Employed

	 Implementation of healthy HRD practices for overall 
development of human resources and induction 
of professionally qualified and skilled manpower 
including internal and external training programmes 
are constant features of your Company. Presently, 
your Company employs more than 1500 employees. 
Your Company is proud of its healthy Industrial 
Relations record.

i) 	 Material Financial and Commercial Transactions 
with related parties

	 There are no materially significant financial and 
commercial transactions with the related parties 
conflicting with the interest of the Company during 
the financial year under review. The Promoters and 
the Directors are not dealing in the Equity Shares of 
the Company.

6.	 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

	 Your Company is committed to principles of good 
governance, and it firmly believes that good corporate 
governance is the adoption of best practices. The 
Board of Directors ensure that the Company is in 
compliances with all the applicable provisions of the 
Clause 49 (as amended) of the Listing Agreement 
pertaining to the Corporate Governance. A 
detailed report on Corporate Governance along 
with a certificate from the Auditors confirming the 
compliance is annexed hereto and forms part of the 
Directors’ Report as Annexure-III.

7.	 CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY:

	 Your Company is socially committed not only in 
compliances of all the statutory laws and regulations 
but also actively participates in the improvement 
of quality of life of the people in the society. 
Your Company has a strong sense of community 
responsibility.

	 Your Company follows the policy which is more and 
more beneficial to the society at large by promoting 
and encouraging economic, social and educational 
development and also giving active support to local 
initiatives around it through upliftment in different 
areas.

	 Your Company has retained collective focus on 
the various areas of corporate sustainability that 
impact people, environment and the society at 
large. Founded on the philosophy that society is 
not just another stakeholder in its business, but 
the prime purpose of it, the Company, across its 
various operations is committed to making a positive 
contribution.

8.	 DIRECTORS:

	 Pursuant to the Companies Act, 1956 and as 
per the Articles of Association of the Company,                                  
Shri S P Talwar  and Shri S T Parikh retire by rotation 
and being eligible have offered themselves for  
re-appointment. The Board of Directors 
recommends their re-appointment.

	 Shri A K Mahendru has resigned from the Board as a 
Whole time Director with effect from 24th May, 2013. 
The Board placed on record its sincere appreciation 
for his invaluable & immense contribution rendered 
during his tenure as Director on the Board of the 
Company.

	 Shri D L Rawal has joined the Board of your Company 
with effect from 24th May, 2013 as an Additional 
Director of the Company. In terms of Section 260 
of the Companies Act, 1956, Shri D L Rawal would 
hold office only upto the forthcoming Annual General 
Meeting of the Company. The Company has received 
a notice under Section 257 of the Companies Act, 
1956 along with the requisite fees proposing 
appointment of Shri D L Rawal as a Director of the 
Company at the said Annual General Meeting.
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17.	 LISTING OF SECURITIES:

	 The Company’s Equity Shares are listed on the  
BSE Limited (BSE) and the National Stock Exchange 
of  India Limited (NSE). The Company’s Secured, 
Redeemable, Non-Convertible Debentures are listed 
on the Wholesale Debt Market (WDM) segment of 
the BSE.

	 The Company has paid the applicable listing fees for 
the Financial Year 2013-2014 to BSE and NSE.

18. 	DEMAT OF SECURITIES:

	 Nearly 84.81% of total Equity Share Capital is held 
in dematerialized form with NSDL/CDSL. While the 
Secured, Redeemable, Non-Convertible Debentures 
are entirely held in dematerialized form.

19.	 SUBSIDIARY & JOINT VENTURE COMPANY:

	 There are six wholly-owned subsidiary companies 
of the Company namely (I) Uttam Galva Holdings 
Limited in Dubai, (II) Atlantis International Services 
Limited in British Virgin Islands, (III) Uttam Galva 
Steels Netherlands B.V. in Netherland, (IV) Neelraj 
International Trade Limited in British Virgin Islands 
and (V) Uttam Galva Steels BVI Limited in British 
Virgin Islands (VI) Uttam Galva Steels FZE in Ras Al 
Khaimah. Further, Uttam Galva Holdings Limited 
has incorporated a downstream wholly owned 
Subsidiary Company namely Ferro Zinc International 
FZE in Jebel Ali Free Zone in United Arab Emirates.

	 As per the terms of the General Circular no. 
2/2011, a statement containing brief financials 
information for the financial year ended 31st March, 
2013 of the aforesaid Subsidiaries are included in 
the Annual Report. Also the accounts of all the 
aforesaid companies are kept for inspection by 
any shareholders at the registered office of your 
Company. Your Company further undertakes that 
the Annual Accounts of the Subsidiary Companies 
and the related detailed information shall be made 

available to shareholders of the Company on demand.

	 Apart from the aforesaid subsidiaries, your Company 
also has two joint venture companies namely, 
Texturing Technology Private Limited and Moira 
Madhujore Coal Limited.

	 The Consolidated Audited Annual Accounts of your 
Company together with its subsidiaries and joint 
venture companies for the Financial Year 2012-2013 
are being published pursuant to Clause 32 of the 
Listing Agreement.

20.	 DISCLOSURES:

	 Information on conservation of energy, technology 
absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo 
required to be given pursuant to Section 217(1)(e) 
of the Companies Act, 1956 read with Companies 
(Disclosure of Particulars in the Report of the 
Board of Directors) Rules, 1988 is annexed hereto 
(Annexure – I) and forms part of this report.

21.	 ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:

	 Your Directors would like to express their 
appreciation to the Central, State & Local 
Governments, Authorities, Regulatory Bodies, 
Financial Institutions, Banks, Customers and the 
Shareholders of the Company for their continued 
support and co-operation.

	 Your Directors also place on record their sincere 
appreciation for the total commitment, dedication 
and hard work put in by every member of the Uttam 
Galva Family.

						    
For and on behalf of the Board

Place : Mumbai	 Rajinder Miglani
Date: 24th May, 2013	     Chairman
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Annexure to the Directors’ report

Annexure – II

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES PURSUANT TO SECTION 217(2A) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956 (As amemded) 
READ WITH THE COMPANIES (PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES) RULES, 1975 AND FORMING PART OF THE 
DIRECTORS’ REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2013.

Employed for Full Year

Name Age 
(Years)

Designation/ 
Nature of 

Duties

Remuneration 
(Rs. in Crore)

Qual fiaction Experience 
(Years)

Date of  
Commencement 
of Employment

Last Employ-
ment / Last 
Designation

Number of 
Shares Held                                   

(%)

Shri Rajinder 
Miglani

67 Executive 
Chairman

1.09 Science  
Graduate

47 30.12.1988 N.A 13,91,855                  
(0.98)                  

Shri Anuj R 
Miglani

39 Managing  
Director

1.15 Mechanical 
Engineer from 
Imperial  
College,  
London

18 01.02.1995 N.A 13,02,094             
(0.92)

Shri Ankit   
Miglani

34 Dy. Managing 
Director

1.15 Graduate in 
Economics 
from Wharton 
School, U.S.A.

11 29.01.2003 N.A 13,00,000             
(0.91)

Notes:

1. 	 The above appointments are contractual.

2. 	 Remuneration includes salary, bonus, Company’s contribution to Provident Fund / Gratuity Fund / Superannuation 
Fund and value of perquisites on the basis of Income Tax Rules.

3. 	 Shri Rajinder Miglani is the father of Shri Anuj R Miglani - Managing Director and Shri Ankit Miglani - Dy. Managing 
Director of the Company.

4. 	 Shri Anuj R Miglani is the son of Shri Rajinder Miglani and brother of Shri Ankit Miglani.

5. 	 Shri Ankit Miglani is the son of Shri Rajinder Miglani and brother of Shri Anuj R Miglani.
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Sr.
No.

Name of the Director Attendance at
Board Meetings

Attendance at
Last AGM

3 Shri O. P. Gahrotra 4 No
4 Shri P. G. Kakodkar 4 No
5 Shri S.T. Parikh 5 Yes
6 Smt. Swarna Prabha Sukumar 4 Yes
7 Shri Anuj R Miglani 5 Yes
8 Shri Ankit Miglani 5 Yes
9 Shri A. K. Mahendru 5 Yes

10 Shri S.G.Tudekar 5 Yes

iii. 	 The Board of Directors of the Company met five times during the Financial Year 2012-2013 on 
following days:

	 1) 	 09.05.2012 	 2) 	 06.08.2012 	 3)  03.11.2012	   4) 	08.02.2013 	   5)  26.02.2013.

iv.	 Disclosure of relationships between Directors:

	 Shri Rajinder Miglani – Executive Chairman of the Company is the Father of Shri Anuj R Miglani – Managing 
Director and Shri Ankit Miglani –Dy. Managing Director of the Company. Except for the abovementioned 
Directors, none of the other Directors are related to each other in terms of relationships.

3. 	 AUDIT COMMITTEE 

i.	 Brief Description of Terms of Reference:

	 The Audit Committee of the Company is constituted in line with the provisions of Clause 49 of the Listing 
Agreement with the Stock Exchanges read with Section 292A of the Companies Act, 1956.

	 The terms of reference and powers of the Audit Committee are as mentioned in Clause 49 II (A) to (E) of the 
Listing Agreement entered into with the Stock Exchanges and read with Section 292A of the Companies Act, 
1956 and includes overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process, reviewing with the management the 
financial statements and the adequacy of the internal audit function internal control and to discuss significant 
internal audit findings, statutory compliance and issues related to risk management and compliances.

ii.	 Composition, Name of Members & Chairperson:

	 Audit Committee comprises of three Non-Executive Independent Directors who are financially literate and 
possess sound knowledge of accounts, audit, finance etc.

	 Composition of the Audit Committee of Directors (Audit Committee) and details of meetings attended by the 
Directors during the year under review

Sr. No. Name of Director No. of Meetings attended
1. Shri S. T. Parikh - Chairman 4
2. Shri P. G. Kakodkar 4
3. Shri O. P. Gahrotra 3

	 The Director & CEO, Director (Finance) & Group CFO, the Internal Auditor and the representatives of 
Statutory Auditors are permanent invitees to the meetings of the Audit Committee.

	 The Operations Heads are invited to the Meetings, as and when required.

	 The Cost Auditors appointed by the Company under Section 233B of the Companies Act, 1956 attends the 
Audit Committee Meeting whenever Cost Audit Report is discussed.

	 Shri R Agrawal, Sr. Vice President & Company Secretary acts as the Secretary of the Audit Committee.
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b.	 Executive Directors:

Sr. 
No.

Name of Directors Position All elements of remuneration 
i.e salary, benefits, allowances, 

bonus, contributions and 
perquisites. 

(Rs. in Crores)
1. Shri Rajinder Miglani Executive Chairman 1.09
2. Shri Anuj R Miglani Managing Director 1.15
3. Shri Ankit Miglani Dy. Managing Director 1.15
4. Shri A. K. Mahendru Director (Commercial) 0.36
5. Shri S. G. Tudekar Director (Works) 0.36

v.	 Disclosures regarding Directors appointment & re-appointment:

	 Shri Rajinder Miglani was re-appointed as Executive Chairman of the Company for the period of 3 years 
commencing from 31st December, 2012 to 30th December, 2015.

	 Shri Anuj R Miglani was re-appointed as Managing Director of the Company for the period of 3 years 
commencing from 10th November, 2012 to 9th November, 2015.

	 In accordance with the requirements of the Act and the Articles of Association of the Company, Shri S P Talwar 
and Shri S T Parikh retire by rotation and being eligible have offered themselves for re-appointment. Brief 
profile of the Directors being appointed/ re-appointed are as follows:

Name of 
Directors

Brief Resume Nature of 
expertise in 

specific areas

The details of the Directorships 
/ Committee Memberships in 
other Companies (excluding 

Private Companies and Section 
25 Companies)

Equity 
Shares 

held in the 
Company

Shri Rajinder 
Miglani

He is an Industrialist 
and joined the Board as 
the Promoter Director 
since the inception of 
the Company. He is a 
Science graduate and 
has more than 47 years 
of experience in the 
Steel Industry.

Industrialist o	 Shree Uttam Steel and Power 
Limited

o	 Uttam Galva Metallics Limited
o	 Uttam Value Steels Limited
o	 Uttam Distribution Network 

Limited
o	 Uttam Galva Ferous Limited
o	 Vibrant Realty And Infrastructure 

Limited
o	 Real ID Limited
o	 Mig Oil & Gas Limited

1391855

Shri Anuj R 
Miglani

He has done Mechanical 
Engineering from the 
Imperial College of 
Science & Technology, 
London. He is managing 
the overall operations 
at the works and also 
playing significant role in 
overall management of 
the Company. He joined 
the board in November, 
2001.

Techno 
Commercial

o	 Shree Uttam Steel & Power Ltd.
o	 Uttam Utkal Steels Limited
o	 Uttam Galva Metallics Limited
o	 Uttam Distribution Network 

Limited
o	 Sindhudurg Iron & Steels Limited
o	 Uttam Metallics and Steels Limited
o	 Kredence Multi Trading Limited
o	 First Wardha Steel Limited
o	 Real ID Limited
o	 Metallurgical Engineering and 

Equipments Limited

1302094
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	 The Committee is looking after the Shareholders’/Investors’ Grievance and redressal of investors’/shareholders’ 
complaints related to transfer of shares, non-receipt of balance sheets, non-receipt of declared dividends etc.

	 During the Financial Year 2012-2013, the Committee had two Meetings i.e. on 03.11.2012 and 26.02.2013.

	 Shri R Agrawal- Sr. Vice President & Company Secretary is the Compliance Officer.

ii.	 Status of the Complaints:

Number of Shareholders Complaints received during the Financial Year 2012-2013 10
Number of complaints not solved to the satisfaction of the shareholders Nil
Number of pending Complaints Nil

6.	 SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

	 Your Company does not have any Indian Subsidiary Company. However, the Company has Six Foreign Subsidiary 
Companies incorporated abroad and one downstream subsidiary Company.

7.	 EQUITY SHARES IN THE SUSPENSE ACCOUNT

	 In terms of Clause 5A(I) of the Listing Agreement, the Company reports that there are no Equity Shares lying in the 
Suspense Account.

8.	 GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

	 i.	 Location and time when the last three Annual General Meetings were held: -

		  The details of the Annual General Meeting held in last three years are as under:

Year Day, Date and Time Location
2009-2010 25th AGM held on Saturday, the 18th September, 

2010 at 11:00 a.m.
M C Ghia Hall, 18/20, K Dubhash Marg, 
Mumbai 400 001.

2010-2011 26th AGM held on Saturday, the 20th August, 2011 
at 11:00 a.m.

M C Ghia Hall, 18/20, K Dubhash Marg, 
Mumbai 400 001.

2011-2012 27th AGM held on Saturday, the 21st July, 2012 at 
11:00 a.m.

M C Ghia Hall, 18/20, K Dubhash Marg, 
Mumbai 400 001.

	 ii.	 Special Resolution passed in previous three Annual General Meetings:-

Year Special Resolution Particulars
2009-2010 Alteration of Articles of Association of the 

Company.
Substitution of Article 3 in respect of 
Authorized Share Capital of the Company.

2010-2011 Nil Nil
2011-2012 Re-appointment of Shri S G Tudekar, Director 

(works).
For a period of 3 years starting from 28th 
October, 2011.

	 iii.	 During the last year the Company has not passed any Special/ Ordinary Resolution through Postal 
Ballot: -

NOTE: 	 All the Resolutions set out in the respective Notices for the above Meetings were duly passed by the 
Shareholders with the requisite majority in each case.

9.	 DISCLOSURES

i. 	 Disclosure of Accounting Treatment:

	 In the preparation of Financial Statements, the Company has followed the Accounting Standards issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI).
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	 I further declare that the said Code of Conduct has been posted on the website of the Company in accordance 
with the Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.

	 Anuj R Miglani	
	 Managing Director

xvii. Auditors’ Certificate on Corporate Governance:

	 The Auditors’ Certificate on Compliance of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement relating to Corporate 
Governance is published as an Annexure to this Report.

xviii. CEO & CFO Certification:

	 Shri Anuj R Miglani, Managing Director and Shri G S Sawhney, Director (Finance) & Group CFO of the Company 
have given annual certification on financial reporting and internal controls to the Board in terms of Clause 49. 
The Managing Director and the Chief Financial Officer also give quarterly certification on financial results while 
placing the financial results before the board in terms of Clause 41 of the Listing Agreement.

xix 	Mandatory / Non- Mandatory Requirements:-

	 During the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2013, the Company has duly complied with all mandatory 
requirements and has also adopted certain non-mandatory requirements of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.

	 The Company has constituted Remuneration Committee (as mentioned herein point no. 4) to determine 
Company’s policy of remuneration to its Executive Directors.

xx. 	 Shareholding Pattern:

	 Pattern of equity shares as on 31st March, 2013 is given here below:
Sr. 
No.

Category No. of Shares 
Held

% of holding

A. Promoter’s Holding
1. Promoters

	 -	 Indian Promoters
	 -	 Foreign Promoters

45266220
41327931

31.82
29.05

2. Persons acting in concert 0 0
Sub-Total (A) 86594151 60.87

B. Non-Promoters Holding
1. Institutional Investors

a. 	 Mutual Funds and UTI 38705 0.03
b. 	 Banks, Financial Institutions, Insurance Companies 

(Central/State Govt. Institutions/
	 Non Govt. Inst.)

144973 0.10

c. 	 FIIs 38865726 27.32
Sub-Total (B) (1) 39049404 27.45

2. Others
a. 	 Bodies Corporate 2639977 1.86
b. 	 Indian Public 10020842 7.05
c. 	 NRIs/OCBs 3238984 2.28
d. 	 Others 716745 0.5

Sub-Total (B) (2) 16616548 11.68
C. Shares held by Custodians and against which Depository 

Receipts have been issued
00 00

GRAND TOTAL 142260103 100.00
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TO, 
THE SHAREHOLDERS OF 
UTTAM GALVA STEELS LIMITED.

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of 
UTTAM GALVA STEELS LIMITED (“the Company”), 
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 
2013, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow 
Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of 
the significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial 
Statements

The Company’s Management is responsible for the 
preparation of these financial statements that give a true 
and fair view of the financial position, financial performance 
and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the 
Accounting Standards referred to in sub-section (3C) 
of section 211 of the Companies Act, 1956 (“the Act”). 
This responsibility includes the design, implementation 
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of the financial statements 
that give a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India. Those Standards require that we comply with the 
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend 
on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making 
those risk assessments, the auditor considers the internal 
control relevant to the Company’s preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. 
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the 
accounting estimates made by the Management, as well 

as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us, the financial 
statements give the information required by the Act 
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view 
in conformity with the accounting principles generally 
accepted in India:
(a)	 in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs 

of the Company as at 31st March, 2013;
(b)	 in the case of the Statement of Profit and Loss, of the 

profit of the Company for the year ended on that 
date, and

(c)	 in the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash 
flows of the Company for the year ended on that 
date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1.	 As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) 

Order, 2003(“the Order”) issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-section (4A) of 
section 227 of the Act, we give in the Annexure a 
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 4 
and 5 of the Order. 

2.	 As required by Section 227(3) of the Act, we report 
that:
(a)	 We have obtained all the information and 

explanations which to the best of our knowledge 
and belief were necessary for the purposes of 
our audit.

(b)	 In our opinion, proper books of account as 
required by law have been kept by the Company 
so far as it appears from our examination of 
those books.

(c)	 The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and 
Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with 
by this Report are in agreement with the books 
of account.

(d)	 In our opinion, the Balance Sheet, Statement of 
Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement 
comply with the Accounting Standards referred 
to in sub-section (3C) of section 211 of the Act.

AUDITOR’S REPORT
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the course of our audit, we have not observed any 
continuing failure to correct major weakness in 
internal control system.

5. 	 In respect of the contracts or arrangements referred 
to in Section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956:

a)	 In our opinion and according to the 
information and explanations given to us, the 
transactions made in pursuance of contracts or 
arrangements, that need to be entered in the 
Register maintained under section 301 of the 
Companies Act, 1956 have been so entered.

b)	 In our opinion and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, the transactions 
made in pursuance of Contracts / arrangements 
entered in Register maintained under section 
301 Companies Act, 1956 and exceeding the 
Rs. 5,00,000 in respect of each party during the 
year have been made at prices which appear 
reasonable having regard to the prevailing 
market price at the relevant time as per 
information available with the Company.

6.	 The Company has not accepted any deposits from 
the public to which the provisions of 58A, 58AA or 
any other relevant provision of the Companies Act, 
1956 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) 
Rules, 1975 apply. Therefore, the provisions of clause 
(vi) of the paragraph 4 of the order are not applicable 
to the Company. 

7.	 In our opinion and according to information and 
explanation given to us, the Company has an internal 
audit system commensurate with the size and nature 
of its business.

8.	 To the best of our knowledge and according to 
the information and explanations given to us, the 
Company has received the report of a Cost Auditor 
as prescribed the maintenance of cost records under 
Section 209 (1) (d) of the Companies Act, 1956.

9.	 In respect of Statutory dues:

a)	 According to the records of the Company, 
undisputed statutory dues including Provident 
Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, 
Sales Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Customs 
Duty, Excise Duty, Cess and any other statutory 
dues have been generally regularly deposited 
with the appropriate authorities. According to 
the information and explanations given to us, no 
undisputed amounts payable in respect of the 
aforesaid dues were outstanding as at March 31, 

2013 for a period of more than six months from 
the date of becoming payable.

b)	 The disputed statutory dues aggregating to  
Rs. 16.37 crore, that have not been deposited 
on account of disputed matters pending 
before appropriate authorities are referred in 
Annexure A.

10.	 The Company does not have accumulated losses 
at the end of the financial year. The Company has 
not incurred any cash losses during the financial year 
covered by our audit and the preceding financial year. 

11.	 Based on our audit procedures and according to 
the information and explanation given to us, the 
Company has not defaulted in the repayment of its 
dues to a Financial Institutions, Banks and Debenture 
Holders.

12.	 According to the information and explanations given 
to us, No loans and advances have been granted 
by the Company on the basis of security by way of 
shares, debentures and other securities.

13.	 In our opinion and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, the Company is not 
a chit fund or a nidhi/mutual benefit fund/society. 
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 4 (xiii) of the 
Order are not applicable to the Company.

14.	 According to the information and explanations given 
to us, the Company is not dealing in shares, securities, 
debentures and other investments. Accordingly, the 
provisions of clause 4 (xiv) of the Order are not 
applicable to the Company.

15.	 (a)	 The Company has given a corporate guarantee 
for loans taken by its wholly owned subsidiary 
Atlantis International Services Limited 
amounting to US $ 40 million to Standard 
Chartered Bank. 

	 (b).	 The Company has given a corporate guarantee 
for loans taken by its step down subsidiary 
Ferro Zinc International FZE amounting to US 
$ 30 million to ICICI Bank.

	 (c)	 The Company has given a corporate guarantee 
to Commissioner of Customs of Rs 87.54 
Crores for Export obligation of its Associate 
Company.

	 (d)	 The Company has given a corporate guarantee 
of Rs 4.30 Crores on behalf of Joint Venture 
Company.
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(iii) 	 In case receipt of Export Advances, exchange rates prevailing on date of receipts of advances is 
treated as relevant exchange rate for exports.

	 (c)	 (i)	 Foreign Currency Term Loan Contracts, covered by Foreign Exchange Swaps are booked at 
contracted rates.

		  (ii)	 Other Foreign Currency Term Loans balances are accounted at Exchange Rate prevailing at the year 
end, and such gain / loss is considered as finance cost.

	 (d)	 Such gain / loss in transactions referred in para (c) above, and other foreign currency contracts and / or 
derivative contracts and relevant exchange gain / loss thereto, are considered as finance cost.

1.03	Interest on Term Loans, Premium on redemption of Debentures / Debts:
(i)	 Pursuant to the Reschedule / Realignment Scheme, interest payable during 2000-2009 financial years is 

lower than the average interest rate during 2000-2014 financial years. The company is treating interest 
payable (yearly rate) as interest accrued.

(ii)	 On reschedulement and realignment of term debts, financial cost incurred is treated as accrued on date of 
realignment of realigned term debts and provided in the relevant financial year.

1.04	Employee Benefits:
A. 	 Short Term Employee Benefits
	 All employee benefits payable / available within 12 months of rendering the services are classified as short 

term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages, bonus etc, are recognized in the P&L account in 
the period in which the employee renders the related services.

B.	 Long Term Employee Benefits
	 Post employment and other long term employee benefits are recognized as an expense in the Profit and 

Loss Account for the year in which the employee has rendered services. The expense is recognized at the 
present value of the amounts payable determined using Actuarial Valuation Techniques. Actuarial gains and 
losses in respect of post-employment and other long term benefits are charged to Profit and Loss Account.

1.05	The Treatment of Expenditure during Construction Period:
(a)	 Expenditure directly related to particular fixed assets is capitalized to those fixed assets. All indirect 

expenses are apportioned to various fixed assets on a reasonable basis. This is done once the construction 
and erection work is completed, pending which the accumulated amount is disclosed as Capital Work-in-
progress Pending capitalization under fixed asset.

(b)	 Interest on Loans are capitalised upto the date on which the asset is ‘Put to Use’. Interest includes exchange 
fluctuation on Foreign Currency Term Loans. It is in line with Accounting Standards on Borrowing Cost and 
long term foreign currency debts and Accounting Standards on Fluctuation on Foreign Exchange currency.

(c)	 The Income and Expenditure during trial runs is included in the Profit & Loss Account. Excess of expenditure 
over income is capitalised.

(d)	 Temporary surplus in short term i.e. liabilities over assets are used for Capital Work In Progress. Interest 
and consequential cost is appropriately accounted.

(e)	 Upfront Expenses incurred on mobilisation of term debts is treated as a part of Capital Cost of relevant 
project.

1.06	Fixed Assets and Depreciation:
(a)	 Fixed assets are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation.
(b)	 Cost excludes Cenvat credit, sales tax and service tax credit and such other levies / taxes. Depreciation on 

such assets is claimed on ‘reduced’ cost.
(c)	 Depreciation on fixed assets has been provided on straight line method at the rates specified, in the Schedule 

XIV of the Companies Act, 1956, in Line with Notification No. GSR/756(E) dated, 16th December 1993.
(d)	 Depreciation on assets acquired during the year has been provided on pro-rata basis; from the date on 

which it is ‘Put to Use’.
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	 Such obligations are recorded as Contingent Liabilities. These are assessed at regular intervals and 
only that part of the obligation for which an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is 
probable, is provided for, except in the extremely rare circumstances where no reliable estimate can 
be made.

(iii)	 Contingent Assets are not recognised in the financial statements as this may result in the recognition 
of income that may never be realised.

1.12	 Export entitlements / obligations:
(a)	 Duty free import of raw materials under Advance Authorisation (DEEC) for imports as per import and 

export policy are matched with exports made / produced. Benefit / Obligation are accounted by making 
suitable adjustments in raw material consumption.

(b)	 The benefits accrued under the Duty Drawback Scheme and Duty Free Import Authorisation (DFIA) as per 
the relevant import and export policies during the year are included under the head:

	 (i)	 Sales: Export incentives
	 (ii)	 Raw material consumed
	 (iii)	 Stores & Rolls consumed
(c)	 Export incentives receivable on export performance are recognised in pursuance to ‘Accounting Standard 

9 on Revenue Recognition’, (AS-9) with reference to certainty of collectability of such export incentives.
1.13	(a)	 Sales are recognised at the time of dispatch to customers / endorsement of documents and includes Central 

Excise Duty; as may be applicable.
	 (b)	 Finished goods captively consumed as packing materials are excluded from sales. Transfer Price, as taken in 

Central Excise Duty records, is treated as the packing material cost.
1.14	 Deferred sales tax incentive available to the Company under Maharashtra Value Added Tax (MVAT) is recognised 

as sales in case Net present value (NPV) is duly paid to the designated authority before the approval of annual 
accounts.

1.15	 Customs Duty:
	 The Company has been accounting for custom duty liability, as may be applicable, in respect of imported raw 

material lying in bonded warehouse as and when they are ex-bonded.
1.16	 Central Excise Duty and Service Tax:

(a)	 The Company is accounting liability for excise duty on finished goods as and when goods are cleared as per 
consistent practice, in pursuance to the accepted practice of the Excise authorities.
(i)	 Inventory valuation

(1)	 Finished goods in the plant at the close of the year are valued inclusive of excise duty.
(2)	 Raw materials and work in process are valued exclusive of Cenvat claimed.

(ii)	 Profit / Loss for the year remain unaffected by inclusion / exclusion of Excise Duty in inventory 
valuation referred in clauses (1) and (2) above.

(b)	 The Company is accounting liability for Service Tax for services purchased, at the time of payment. The 
credit for Input Services Tax is claimed as per appropriate laws, rules and regulations.

1.17	 Commodity Hedging Transactions:
	 In respect of commodity hedging transactions, the gain / loss on settlement and provisions for gain / losses at year 

end are appropriately accounted along with material cost in Profit and Loss Account.
1.18	 Inter Unit transactions are eliminated to the extent possible.
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B.	 NOTES ON ACCOUNTS

2.0	 Previous Year’s figures are regrouped and rearranged wherever necessary.

3.1	 Contingent Liabilities not provided for in respect of:

Sr. 
No

Particulars  As at  
31st March, 2013

 As at  
31st March, 2012

(a) Letters of Credit outstanding 754.88 698.58
(b) Bank Guarantees 129.12 130.25
(c) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on 

capital account and not provided for
86.31 126.02

(d) Bills Discounted NIL NIL

3.2	 The Company had given a corporate guarantee of Rs.87.54 Crores (Previous Year Rs. 87.54 Crores) to 
Commissioner of Customs against export obligation of Uttam Galva Metallics Limited.

3.3 	 The Company had given a corporate guarantee of Rs.4.30 Crores (Previous Year Rs. 4.30 Crores) to Punjab 
National Bank Limited on behalf of Joint Venture Company.

3.4	 The Company has given a corporate guarantee of USD 40 million (Previous Year USD 40 Million) to Standard 
Chartered Bank against credit facility availed by Atlantis International Service Company Limited, Sundry Creditors 
under the head current liability includes Rs. Nil Crores (Previous Year Rs 96.66 Crores) towards the liability 
payable to subsidiary company.

3.5	 The company has given a corporate guarantee of USD 30 million ( Previous Year USD 30 million) to ICICI Bank 
against credit facility availed by Ferro Zinc International FZE, Sundry Creditors under the head current liability 
includes Rs. 59.79 (Previous Year Rs.153.99 Cores ) towards the liability payable to subsidiary company.

4.0	 During the Financial Year, the Company has shifted its ERP System from MFG-PRO to SAP w.e.f 1st January 2013. 
Prima Facie, the new system is implemented satisfactorily with reference to material movements (MM Module) 
and financial transactions (SD and FI Modules). Errors/Omissions / Slippages of insignificant nature noticed during 
implementation have been corrected appropriately.

5.0	 (a)	 The Company is being re-assessed, under section 153A r/w section 132 of the Act for Assessments Year 
2006-07 to 2011-12 i.e Financial Year 2005-06 to 2010-11.

	 (b)	 The Sales Tax Assessments are completed up to 31st March, 2011.

	 (c)	 The Company does not expect any liability on remaining assessments / appeals.

6.0	 Pursuant to revision of Accounting Standard 11 (AS 11), exchange fluctuation Loss of Rs.8.82 Crores (Previous 
Year Rs. 18.33 Crores) on Foreign Currency Loans is adjusted against cost of relevant fixed assets.

7.0	 Taxation.

7.1	 The Company does not have any taxable income as per the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961. However, it 
is liable to MAT (Minimum Alternate Tax).

7.2	 During the year, the Company decided to prepay Value Added Tax (VAT) payable under Deferral Sales Tax scheme, 
Against the Deferral Sales Tax liability of Rs.132.23 Crores (Previous year Rs. 135.03 Crores) for period April 2012 
to March 2013. The Company has prepaid Rs. 37.03 Crores (Previous year Rs.37.81 Crores) at net present value 
as prescribed, and consequential balance of Rs. 93.83 Crores (Previous year Rs. 97.21 Crores) is treated as sales 
and Rs. 1.37 crores (Previous Year Rs. 1.01 crores) is credited to Fuel Account. This credit has accrued and arisen 
during the financial year 2012-13.

8.0	 During the current year under review the company carried out modification / revamping of Super Galvanizing Line 
(SGL). Total expenditure includes cost of sales, Rs. 1162.10 Crores (Previous year Rs. 861.21 Crores) related to 
goods produced during trial run. Excess of expenditure over Sales realization is capitalized.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
To the Board of Directors of Uttam Galva Steels Limited
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements (the “Consolidated Financial Statements”) of Uttam 
Galva Steels Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries and its joint venture companies; hereinafter referred to as the 
“Group” (refer Note 1 to the attached Consolidated financial statements) which comprise the Consolidated Balance 
Sheet as at March 31, 2013,the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement 
for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information which we 
have signed under reference to this report.
Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements
The Company’s Management is responsible for the preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give a 
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash flows 
of the Group in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility includes the design, 
implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated 
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those 
Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks 
of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the Company’s preparation and fair presentation of the 
consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An 
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting 
estimates made by Management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.
We did not audit the financial statements of subsidiaries and joint ventures included in the consolidated financial statements, 
which constitute total assets (net) of Rs. 168.11 Crores as at March 31, 2013. Total revenue of Rs. 359.79 crores, net loss 
of Rs. 6.75 Crores and net cash inflows amounting to Rs 68.40 Crores for the year then ended. These financial statements 
and other financial information have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us, and our 
opinion on the consolidated financial statements to the extent they have been derived from such financial statements is 
based solely on the report of such other auditors.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion
We report that the consolidated financial statements have been prepared by the Company’s Management in accordance 
with the requirements of Accounting Standard (AS) 21 - Consolidated Financial Statements, and Accounting Standard 
(AS) 27 - Financial Reporting of Interests in Joint Ventures notified under Section 211 (3C) of the Companies Act, 1956.
Based on our audit and on consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements and on the other 
financial information of the components of the Group as referred to in paragraph above, and to the best of our information 
and according to the explanations given to us, in our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements give a 
true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India:
(a)	 In the case of the Consolidated Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2013;
(b)	 In the case of the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, of the profit for the year ended on that date; and

(c)	 In the case of the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.

For Prakkash Muni & Associates, 
Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No: 111792W

Prakkash R Muni 
Place: Mumbai 	 Partner 
Date: 24th May, 2013 	 Membership No: 30544
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11.0	(a)	 List of Related Parties As per Accounting Standard 18 (AS.18) with whom the Company have entered into 
transactions during the year in the ordinary course of business:

(i)	 Key Managerial Personnel:

	 Mr. Rajinder Miglani

	 Mr. Anuj R Miglani

	 Mr. Ankit Miglani

	 Mr. Gursharan Singh Sawhney

	 Mr. Sunil Prakash

(ii)	O ther Related Parties

	 (Associates of the Company/Enterprises over which key management personnel and/or their relatives exercise 
significant influence)

	 Co-Promoter

	 ArcelorMittal Netherland, B.V.

	 Associates 

	 Grow well Mercantile Limited

	 Shree Uttam Steel and Power Limited

	 Uttam Galva Metallics Limited

	 Uttam Distribution Network Limited

	 Uttam Utkal Steels Limited.

	 Sainath Trading Company Private Ltd

	 Uttam Galva Ferous Ltd

	 Kredence Multi Trading Ltd

	 Archisha Investment Pvt Ltd

	 (b)	D etails of transactions with related parties referred to in (a)(ii) above:

Particulars Ability to Contol/
Exercise significant 

influence

Associates Ability to Contol/
Exercise significant 

influence

Associates

Amt (Rs in Crores) Amt (Rs in Crores) Amt (Rs in Crores) Amt (Rs in Crores)

2012-13 2011-12

Sale of goods / services 496.33 522.15 557.19 301.30

Purchase of goods / services 320.15 139.06 761.70 Nil

Rent Payment 1.86 2.05

Signatures to Notes 

As per our Report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For Prakkash Muni & Associates
Chartered Accountants Rajinder Miglani  Anuj R Miglani
Firm Registration No 111792 W Chairman Managing Director

Prakkash R. Muni Gursharan S Sawhney R Agrawal
Partner Director (Finance) & Group CFO Sr. Vice President & Company Secretary
Membership No 30544

Place 	 : 	 Mumbai
Date	 : 	 24th May, 2013
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Notes



IMPOrtant communication to members

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs  undertook a “Green Initiative in the Corporate Governance” by allowing 
paperless compliance by the companies and has issued circular Nos. 17/2011 dated 21-4-2011 and 18/2011 dated 29-4-
2011 stating that service of notice / documents including Annual Report can be sent by electronic mode to its members. 
To support this Green initiative of the Government in full measure, members who have not registered their e-mail 
addresses so far, are requested to register their e-mail addresses and changes therein from time to time along with their 
name, address and Folio No./Client Id Nos., in respect of their shareholding with:

1)	 The Registrar and Share Transfer Agents viz. Universal Capital Securities Pvt. Ltd. for shares held in physical form 
and;

2)	 The concerned Depository Participants in respect of shares held in electronic / demat mode

Upon registration of e-mail address(es), the Company would send Notices / Circulars / Documents including Annual 
Report and other communications via electronic mode.

In case any Member opts / insists for physical copies of above documents, the same would be send to him by post free 
of cost at the address registered with the Company.

Note : You can register your e-mail address at the Company’s E-mail address: shares@uttamgalva.com

REGISTRATION FORM FOR RECEIVING DOCUMENTS IN ELECTRONIC MODE

M/s. Universal Capital Securities Private Limited 
(Unit: UGSL) 
21, Shakil Niwas, Mahakali Caves Road, 
Andheri (East), Mumbai – 400 093.

I/We, am/are member/s of M/s. UTTAM GALVA STEELS LIMITED and hereby exercise my/our option to receive the 
documents such as Notices / Circulars / Documents including Annual Reports and other communications in electronic 
mode pursuant to the circular Nos. 17/2011 date 21-4-2011 and 18/2011 dated 29-4-2011 by the Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs. Please register my following e-mail id in your records for sending communication through electronic mode.

Name of First Member ____________________________________________________________________

Joint Holder – 1 _________________________________________________________________________

Joint Holder – 2 _________________________________________________________________________

E-mail id for registration ___________________________________________________________________

Date: _______________________________________Signature (1st holder) ___________________________________

	 Regd. Folio /Client Id No. ________________________________

 Cut here



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operations in the financial statements of an enterprise, transactions must be
expressed in the enterprise’s reporting currency and the financial statements
of foreign operations must be translated into the enterprise’s reporting
currency.

The principal issues in accounting for foreign currency transactions and
foreign operations are to decide which exchange rate to use and how to
recognise in the financial statements the financial effect of changes in
exchange  rates.

Scope
1. This Statement should be applied:

(a) in accounting for transactions in foreign currencies; and

(b) in translating the financial statements of foreign operations.

2. This Statement also deals with accounting for foreign currency
transactions in the nature of forward exchange contracts.3

3 It may be noted that on the basis of a decision of the Council at its meeting held on
June 24-26, 2004, an Announcement titled ‘Applicability of Accounting Standard
(AS) 11 (revised 2003), The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates, in respect
of exchange differences arising on a forward exchange contract entered into to hedge
the foreign currency risk of a firm commitment or a highly probable forecast transac-
tion’ has been issued. The Announcement clarifies that AS 11 (revised 2003) does
not deal with the accounting of exchange difference arising on a forward exchange
contract entered into to hedge the foreign currency risk of a firm commitment or a
highly probable forecast transaction. It has also been separately clarified that AS
11
(revised 2003) continues to be applicable to exchange differences on all other for-
ward exchange contracts. The Institute, in January 2006, issued an Announcement
on ‘Accounting for exchange differences arising on a forward exchange contract
entered into to hedge the foreign currency risk of a firm commitment or a highly
probable forecast transaction’ (published in ‘The Chartered Accountant’ January
2006 (pp.1090-1091)). As per the subsequent Announcements issued in this regard,
the said Announcement would be applicable in respect of accounting period(s)
commencing on or after April 1, 2007. [For full text of the Announcements issued in
this regard, reference may be made to the section titled ‘Announcements of the
Council regarding status of various documents issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India’ appearing at the beginning of this Compendium.]
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3. This Statement does not specify the currency in which an enterprise
presents its financial statements. However, an enterprise normally uses the
currency of the country in which it is domiciled. If it uses a different
currency, this Statement requires disclosure of the reason for using that
currency. This Statement also requires disclosure of the reason for any
change in the reporting currency.

4. This Statement does not deal with the restatement of an enterprise’s
financial statements from its reporting currency into another currency for
the convenience of users accustomed to that currency or for similar purposes.

5. This Statement does not deal with the presentation in a cash flow
statement of cash flows arising from transactions in a foreign currency and
the translation of cash flows of a foreign operation (see AS 3, Cash Flow
Statements).

6. This Statement does not deal with exchange differences arising from
foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an
adjustment to interest costs (see paragraph 4(e) of AS 16, Borrowing
Costs).

Definitions
7. The following terms are used in this Statement with the meanings
specified:

Average rate is the mean of the exchange rates in force during a
period.

Closing rate is the exchange rate at the balance sheet date.

Exchange difference is the difference resulting from reporting the
same number of units of a foreign currency in the reporting currency
at  different  exchange  rates.

Exchange rate is the ratio for exchange of two currencies.

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a
liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s
length  transaction.

Foreign currency is a currency other than the reporting currency of
an enterprise.
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Foreign operation is a subsidiary4 , associate5 , joint venture6 or branch
of the reporting enterprise, the activities of which are based or
conducted in a country other than the country of the reporting
enterprise.

Forward exchange contract means an agreement to exchange
different currencies at a forward rate.

Forward rate is the specified exchange rate for exchange of two
currencies at a specified future date.

Integral foreign operation is a foreign operation, the activities of
which are an integral part of those of the reporting enterprise.

Monetary items are money held and assets and liabilities to be received
or paid in fixed or determinable amounts of money.

Net  investment  in  a  non-integral  foreign  operation  is the reporting
enterprise’s share in the net assets of that operation.

Non-integral foreign operation is a foreign operation that is not an
integral  foreign  operation.

Non-monetary items are assets and liabilities other than monetary
items.

Reporting currency is  the  currency  used  in  presenting  the  financial
statements.

Foreign Currency Transactions

Initial Recognition

8. A foreign currency transaction is a transaction which is denominated
in or requires settlement in a foreign currency, including transactions arising
when an enterprise either:

4As defined in AS 21, Consolidated Financial Statements.
5As defined in AS 23, Accounting for Investments in Associates in Consolidated
Financial Statements.
6As defined in AS 27, Financial Reporting of Interests in Joint Ventures.
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(a) buys or sells goods or services whose price is denominated in a
foreign currency;

(b) borrows or lends funds when the amounts payable or receivable
are denominated in a foreign currency;

(c) becomes a party to an unperformed forward exchange contract;
or

(d) otherwise acquires or disposes of assets, or incurs or settles
liabilities, denominated in a foreign currency.

9. A foreign currency transaction should be recorded, on initial
recognition in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign
currency  amount  the  exchange  rate  between  the  reporting  currency
and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

10. For practical reasons, a rate that approximates the actual rate at the
date of the transaction is often used, for example, an average rate for a
week or a month might be used for all transactions in each foreign currency
occurring during that period. However, if exchange rates fluctuate
significantly, the use of the average rate for a period is unreliable.

Reporting at Subsequent Balance Sheet Dates

11. At each balance sheet date:

(a) foreign currency monetary items should be reported using
the closing rate. However, in certain circumstances, the
closing rate may not reflect with reasonable accuracy the
amount  in  reporting  currency  that  is  likely  to  be  realised
from, or required to disburse, a foreign currency monetary
item at the balance sheet date, e.g., where there are
restrictions on remittances or where the closing rate is
unrealistic and it is not possible to effect an exchange of
currencies  at  that  rate  at  the  balance  sheet  date.  In  such
circumstances, the relevant monetary item should be reported
in the reporting currency at the amount which is likely to be
realised from, or required to disburse, such item at the
balance  sheet  date;

(b) non-monetary items which are carried in terms of historical
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cost denominated in a foreign currency should be reported
using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction; and

(c) non-monetary items which are carried at fair value or other
similar valuation denominated in a foreign currency should
be reported using the exchange rates that existed when the
values were determined.

12. Cash, receivables, and payables are examples of monetary items.
Fixed assets, inventories, and investments in equity shares are examples of
non-monetary items. The carrying amount of an item is determined in
accordance with the relevant Accounting Standards. For example, certain
assets may be measured at fair value or other similar valuation (e.g., net
realisable value) or at historical cost. Whether the carrying amount is
determined based on fair value or other similar valuation or at historical
cost,  the  amounts  so  determined  for  foreign  currency  items  are  then
reported in the reporting currency in accordance with this Statement. The
contingent liability denominated in foreign currency at the balance sheet
date is disclosed by using the closing rate.

Recognition of Exchange Differences7

13. Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items

7 It may be noted that the Institute has issued in 2003 an Announcement titled
‘Treatment of exchange differences under Accounting Standard (AS) 11 (revised
2003), The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates vis-a-vis Schedule VI to the
Companies Act, 1956’. As per the Announcement, the requirement with regard to
treatment of exchange differences contained in AS 11 (revised 2003), is different from
Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 1956, since AS 11 (revised 2003) does not require
the adjustment of exchange differences in the carrying amount of the fixed assets, in
the situations envisaged in Schedule VI. It has been clarified that pending the
amendment, if any, to Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 1956, in respect of the
matter, a company adopting the treatment described in Schedule VI will still be
considered to be complying with AS 11 (revised 2003) for the purposes of section 211
of the Act. Accordingly, the auditor of the company should not assert non-compliance
with AS 11 (2003) under section 227(3)(d) of the Act in such a case and should not
qualify his report in this regard on the true and fair view of the state of the company’s
affairs and profit or loss of the company under section 227(2) of the Act. (published
in ‘The Chartered Accountant’, November, 2003, pp. 497.) The full text of the
Announcement has been reproduced in the section titled ‘Announcements of
the Council regarding status of various documents issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India’ appearing at the beginning of this Compendium.
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or on reporting an enterprise’s monetary items at rates different from
those at which they were initially recorded during the period, or reported
in previous financial statements, should be recognised as income or as
expenses in the period in which they arise, with the exception of
exchange differences dealt with in accordance with paragraph 15.

14. An exchange difference results when there is a change in the exchange
rate between the transaction date and the date of settlement of any monetary
items arising from a foreign currency transaction. When the transaction is
settled within the same accounting period as that in which it occurred, all
the exchange difference is recognised in that period. However, when the
transaction is settled in a subsequent accounting period, the exchange
difference recognised in each intervening period up to the period of settlement
is determined by the change in exchange rates during that period.

Net Investment in a Non-integral Foreign Operation

15. Exchange differences arising on a monetary item that, in
substance, forms part of an enterprise’s net investment in a non-
integral foreign operation should be accumulated in a foreign currency
translation reserve in the enterprise’s financial statements until the
disposal of the net investment, at which time they should be recognised
as income or as expenses in accordance with paragraph 31.

16. An enterprise may have a monetary item that is receivable from, or
payable to, a non-integral foreign operation. An item for which settlement
is neither planned nor likely to occur in the foreseeable future is, in
substance, an extension to, or deduction from, the enterprise’s net investment
in that non-integral foreign operation. Such monetary items may include
long-term receivables or loans but do not include trade receivables or trade
payables.

Financial Statements of Foreign Operations

Classification of Foreign Operations
17. The method used to translate the financial statements of a foreign
operation depends on the way in which it is financed and operates in
relation to the reporting enterprise. For this purpose, foreign operations are
classified as either “integral foreign operations” or “non-integral foreign
operations”.
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18. A foreign operation that is integral to the operations of the reporting
enterprise carries on its business as if it were an extension of the reporting
enterprise’s operations. For example, such a foreign operation might only
sell goods imported from the reporting enterprise and remit the proceeds to
the reporting enterprise. In such cases, a change in the exchange rate
between the reporting currency and the currency in the country of foreign
operation has an almost immediate effect on the reporting enterprise’s
cash flow from operations. Therefore, the change in the exchange rate
affects the individual monetary items held by the foreign operation rather
than the reporting enterprise’s net investment in that operation.

19. In contrast, a non-integral foreign operation accumulates cash and
other monetary items, incurs expenses, generates income and perhaps
arranges borrowings, all substantially in its local currency. It may also
enter into transactions in foreign currencies, including transactions in the
reporting currency. When there is a change in the exchange rate between
the reporting currency and the local currency, there is little or no direct
effect on the present and future cash flows from operations of either the
non-integral foreign operation or the reporting enterprise. The change in
the exchange rate affects the reporting enterprise’s net investment in the
non-integral foreign operation rather than the individual monetary and non-
monetary items held by the non-integral foreign operation.

20. The following are indications that a foreign operation is a non-integral
foreign operation rather than an integral foreign operation:

(a) while the reporting enterprise may control the foreign operation,
the activities of the foreign operation are carried out with a
significant degree of autonomy from those of the reporting
enterprise;

(b) transactions with the reporting enterprise are not a high
proportion of the foreign operation’s activities;

(c) the activities of the foreign operation are financed mainly from
its own operations or local borrowings rather than from the
reporting enterprise;

(d) costs of labour, material and other components of the foreign
operation’s products or services are primarily paid or settled in
the local currency rather than in the reporting currency;
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(e) the foreign operation’s sales are mainly in currencies other than
the reporting currency;

(f) cash flows of the reporting enterprise are insulated from the
day-to-day activities of the foreign operation rather than being
directly affected by the activities of the foreign operation;

(g) sales prices for the foreign operation’s products are not primarily
responsive on a short-term basis to changes in exchange rates
but are determined more by local competition or local government
regulation; and

(h) there is an active local sales market for the foreign operation’s
products, although there also might be significant amounts of
exports.

The appropriate classification for each operation can, in principle, be
established from factual information related to the indicators listed above.
In some cases, the classification of a foreign operation as either a non-
integral foreign operation or an integral foreign operation of the reporting
enterprise may not be clear, and judgement is necessary to determine
the appropriate classification.

Integral Foreign Operations

21. The financial statements of an integral foreign operation should
be translated using the principles and procedures in paragraphs 8 to
16 as if the transactions of the foreign operation had been those of the
reporting  enterprise  itself.

22. The individual items in the financial statements of the foreign operation
are translated as if all its transactions had been entered into by the reporting
enterprise itself. The cost and depreciation of tangible fixed assets is
translated using the exchange rate at the date of purchase of the asset or,
if the asset is carried at fair value or other similar valuation, using the rate
that existed on the date of the valuation. The cost of inventories is translated
at the exchange rates that existed when those costs were incurred. The
recoverable amount or realisable value of an asset is translated using the
exchange rate that existed when the recoverable amount or net realisable
value was determined. For example, when the net realisable value of an
item of inventory is determined in a foreign currency, that value is translated
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using the exchange rate at the date as at which the net realisable value is
determined. The rate used is therefore usually the closing rate. An adjustment
may be required to reduce the carrying amount of an asset in the financial
statements of the reporting enterprise to its recoverable amount or net
realisable value even when no such adjustment is necessary in the financial
statements of the foreign operation. Alternatively, an adjustment in the
financial statements of the foreign operation may need to be reversed in
the financial statements of the reporting enterprise.

23. For practical reasons, a rate that approximates the actual rate at the
date of the transaction is often used, for example, an average rate for a
week or a month might be used for all transactions in each foreign currency
occurring during that period. However, if exchange rates fluctuate
significantly, the use of the average rate for a period is unreliable.

Non-integral Foreign Operations

24. In translating the financial statements of a non-integral foreign
operation for incorporation in its financial statements, the reporting
enterprise should use the following procedures:

(a) the assets and liabilities, both monetary and non-monetary,
of  the  non-integral  foreign  operation  should  be  translated
at the closing rate;

(b) income and expense items of the non-integral foreign
operation should be translated at exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions; and

(c) all resulting exchange differences should be accumulated
in a foreign currency translation reserve until the disposal
of the net investment.

25. For practical reasons, a rate that approximates the actual exchange
rates, for example an average rate for the period, is often used to translate
income and expense items of a foreign operation.

26. The translation of the financial statements of a non-integral foreign
operation results in the recognition of exchange differences arising from:

(a) translating income and expense items at the exchange rates at
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the dates of transactions and assets and liabilities at the closing
rate;

(b) translating the opening net investment in the non-integral foreign
operation at an exchange rate different from that at which it
was previously reported; and

(c) other changes to equity in the non-integral foreign operation.

These exchange differences are not recognised as income or expenses for
the period because the changes in the exchange rates have little or no
direct effect on the present and future cash flows from operations of either
the non-integral foreign operation or the reporting enterprise. When a non-
integral foreign operation is consolidated but is not wholly owned,
accumulated exchange differences arising from translation and attributable
to minority interests are allocated to, and reported as part of, the minority
interest in the consolidated balance sheet.

27. Any goodwill or capital reserve arising on the acquisition of a non-
integral foreign operation is translated at the closing rate in accordance
with paragraph 24.

28. A contingent liability disclosed in the financial statements of a non-
integral foreign operation is translated at the closing rate for its disclosure
in the financial statements of the reporting enterprise.

29. The incorporation of the financial statements of a non-integral foreign
operation in those of the reporting enterprise follows normal consolidation
procedures, such as the elimination of intra-group balances and intra-group
transactions of a subsidiary (see AS 21, Consolidated Financial Statements,
and AS 27, Financial Reporting of Interests in Joint Ventures). However,
an exchange difference arising on an intra-group monetary item, whether
short-term or long-term, cannot be eliminated against a corresponding
amount arising on other intra-group balances because the monetary item
represents a commitment to convert one currency into another and exposes
the reporting enterprise to a gain or loss through currency fluctuations.
Accordingly,  in  the  consolidated  financial  statements  of  the reporting
enterprise, such an exchange difference continues to be recognised as
income or an expense or, if it arises from the circumstances described in
paragraph 15, it is accumulated in a foreign currency translation reserve
until the disposal of the net investment.
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30. When the financial statements of a non-integral foreign operation are
drawn up to a different reporting date from that of the reporting enterprise,
the non-integral foreign operation often prepares, for purposes of incorporation
in the financial statements of the reporting enterprise, statements as at the
same date as the reporting enterprise. When it is impracticable to do this,
AS 21, Consolidated Financial Statements, allows the use of financial
statements drawn up to a different reporting date provided that the difference
is no greater than six months and adjustments are made for the effects of
any significant transactions or other events that occur between the different
reporting dates. In such a case, the assets and liabilities of the non-integral
foreign operation are translated at the exchange rate at the balance sheet
date of the non-integral foreign operation and adjustments are made when
appropriate for significant movements in exchange rates up to the balance
sheet date of the reporting enterprises in accordance with AS 21. The
same approach is used in applying the equity method to associates and in
applying proportionate consolidation to joint ventures in accordance with
AS 23, Accounting for Investments in Associates in Consolidated Financial
Statements and AS 27, Financial Reporting of Interests in Joint Ventures.

Disposal of a Non-integral Foreign Operation

31. On the disposal of a non-integral foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences which have been deferred and
which relate to that operation should be recognised as income or as
expenses in the same period in which the gain or loss on disposal is
recognised.

32. An enterprise may dispose of its interest in a non-integral foreign
operation through sale, liquidation, repayment of share capital, or
abandonment of all, or part of, that operation. The payment of a dividend
forms part of a disposal only when it constitutes a return of the investment.
In the case of a partial disposal, only the proportionate share of the related
accumulated exchange differences is included in the gain or loss. A write-
down of the carrying amount of a non-integral foreign operation does not
constitute a partial disposal. Accordingly, no part of the deferred foreign
exchange gain or loss is recognised at the time of a write-down.

Change in the Classification of a Foreign Operation

33. When there is a change in the classification of a foreign operation,
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the translation procedures applicable to the revised classification
should be applied from the date of the change in the classification.

34. The consistency principle requires that foreign operation once classified
as integral or non-integral is continued to be so classified. However, a
change in the way in which a foreign operation is financed and operates in
relation to the reporting enterprise may lead to a change in the classification
of that foreign operation. When a foreign operation that is integral to the
operations of the reporting enterprise is reclassified as a non-integral foreign
operation, exchange differences arising on the translation of non-monetary
assets  at  the  date  of  the  reclassification  are  accumulated  in  a  foreign
currency  translation  reserve.  When  a  non-integral  foreign  operation  is
reclassified as an integral foreign operation, the translated amounts for
non-monetary items at the date of the change are treated as the historical
cost for those items in the period of change and subsequent periods.
Exchange differences which have been deferred are not recognised as
income or expenses until the disposal of the operation.

All Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

Tax Effects of Exchange Differences

35. Gains and losses on foreign currency transactions and
exchange differences arising on the translation of the financial statements
of foreign operations may have associated tax effects which are
accounted for in accordance with AS 22, Accounting for Taxes on
Income.

Forward Exchange Contracts8

36. An enterprise may enter into a forward exchange contract or
another financial instrument that is in substance a forward exchange
contract, which is not intended for trading or speculation purposes, to
establish the amount of the reporting currency required or available
at the settlement date of a transaction. The premium or discount
arising at the inception of such a forward exchange contract should
be amortised as expense or income over the life of the contract.
Exchange differences on such a contract should be recognised in the
statement of profit and loss in the reporting period in which the

8 See footnote 3.
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exchange rates change. Any profit or loss arising on cancellation or
renewal of such  a forward exchange contract should be recognised
as income or as expense for the period.

37. The risks associated with changes in exchange rates may be mitigated
by entering into forward exchange contracts. Any premium or discount
arising at the inception of a forward exchange contract is accounted for
separately from the exchange differences on the forward exchange contract.
The premium or discount that arises on entering into the contract is measured
by the difference between the exchange rate at the date of the inception
of the forward exchange contract and the forward rate specified in the
contract. Exchange difference on a forward exchange contract is the
difference between (a) the foreign currency amount of the contract
translated at the exchange rate at the reporting date, or the settlement date
where the transaction is settled during the reporting period, and (b) the
same foreign currency amount translated at the latter of the date of
inception of the forward exchange contract and the last reporting date.

38. A gain or loss on a forward exchange contract to which
paragraph 36 does not apply should be computed by multiplying the
foreign currency amount of the forward exchange contract by the
difference between the forward rate available at the reporting date
for the remaining maturity of the contract and the contracted forward
rate (or the forward rate last used to measure a gain or loss on that
contract for an earlier period). The gain or loss so computed should
be recognised in the statement of profit and loss for the period. The
premium or discount on the forward exchange contract is not
recognised separately.

39. In recording a forward exchange contract intended for trading or
speculation purposes, the premium or discount on the contract is ignored
and at each balance sheet date, the value of the contract is marked to its
current market value and the gain or loss on the contract is recognised.

Disclosure
40. An enterprise should disclose:

(a) the amount of exchange differences included in the net
profit or loss for the period; and
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(b) net  exchange  differences  accumulated  in  foreign  currency
translation reserve as a separate component of shareholders’
funds, and a reconciliation of the amount of such exchange
differences at the beginning and end of the period.

41. When the reporting currency is different from the currency of
the country in which the enterprise is domiciled, the reason for using
a different currency should be disclosed. The reason for any change
in the reporting currency should also be disclosed.

42. When there is a change in the classification of a significant
foreign operation, an enterprise should disclose:

(a) the nature of the change in classification;

(b) the reason for the change;

(c) the impact of the change in classification on shareholders’
funds; and

(d) the impact on net profit or loss for each prior period
presented had the change in classification occurred at the
beginning of the earliest period presented.

43. The effect on foreign currency monetary items or on the financial
statements of a foreign operation of a change in exchange rates occurring
after the balance sheet date is disclosed in accordance with AS 4,
Contingencies and Events Occurring After the Balance Sheet Date.

44. Disclosure is also encouraged of an enterprise’s foreign currency
risk management policy.

Transitional Provisions
45. On the first time application of this Statement, if a foreign branch
is classified as  a non-integral foreign operation in accordance with
the requirements of this Statement, the accounting treatment prescribed
in paragraphs 33 and 34 of the Statement in respect of change in the
classification of a foreign operation should be applied.
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Note: This Appendix is not a part of the Accounting Standard. The
purpose of this appendix is only to bring out the major differences
between Accounting Standard 11 (revised 2003) and corresponding
International Accounting Standard (IAS) 21 (revised 1993).

Comparison with IAS 21, The Effects of Changes
in Foreign Exchange Rates (revised 1993)
Revised AS 11 (2003) differs from International Accounting Standard (IAS)
21, The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates, in the following
major respects in terms of scope, accounting treatment, and terminology.

1. Scope

Inclusion of forward exchange contracts

Revised AS 11 (2003) deals with forward exchange contracts both intended
for hedging and for trading or speculation. IAS 21 does not deal with hedge
accounting  for  foreign  currency  items  other  than  the  classification  of
exchange differences arising on a foreign currency liability accounted for
as a hedge of a net investment in a foreign entity. It also does not deal with
forward  exchange  contracts  for  trading  or  speculation. The  aforesaid
aspects are dealt with in IAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement. Although, an Indian accounting standard corresponding to
IAS 39 is under preparation, it has been decided to deal with accounting
for forward exchange contracts in the revised AS 11 (2003), since the
existing AS 11 deals with the same. Thus, accounting for forward exchange
contracts would not remain unaddressed untill the issuance of the Indian
accounting standard on financial instruments.

2. Accounting treatment

Recognition of exchange differences resulting from severe currency
devaluations

IAS 21, as a benchmark treatment, requires, in general, that exchange
differences on transactions be recognised as income or as expenses in the
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period in which they arise. IAS 21, however, also permits as an allowed
alternative treatment, that exchange differences that arise from a
severe devaluation or depreciation of a currency be included in the carrying
amount
of an asset, if certain conditions are satisfied. In line with the preference of
the Council of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, to eliminate
alternatives, where possible, revised AS 11 (2003) adopts the benchmark
treatment as the only acceptable treatment.

3. Terminology

Foreign operation

The revised AS 11 (2003) uses the terms, integral foreign operation and
non-integral foreign operation respectively for the expressions “foreign
operations that are integral to the operations of the reporting enterprise”
and “foreign entity” used in IAS 21. The intention is to communicate the
meaning of these terms concisely. This change has no effect on the
requirements in revised AS 11 (2003). Revised AS 11 (2003) provides
additional implementation guidance by including two more indicators for the
classification of a foreign operation as a non-integral foreign operation.




